
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING JUNE 6, 2012    Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY JUNE 6, 2012  7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE CALIFORNIA 92252 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT: At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the 
Board’s jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone. The Board may not 
discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda.   
During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your 
information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and 
appreciates your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 
 

 
 
 
Pg  1-3 
Pg  4-5 
 
Pg  6-58 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will be adopted in 
total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any individual or organization interested 
in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 

A. Approve Minutes of May 16, 2012 Regular Board Meeting/Special CAC Meeting 
B. Approve Minutes of May 16, 2012 Special Board Meeting 
C. Cancel July 4th Regular Board Meeting and Schedule June 13th Special Board Meeting 
D. Specifications for chain link and tortoise fence for recharge project currently out to bid: information 

only 
 

Pg  59 7. FISCAL YEAR 2013 AND 2014 BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CITIZENS ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE 
 

Pg  60 8. FISCAL YEAR 2013 AND 2014 BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS FROM AD HOC BUDGET 
COMMITTEE 
 

Pg 61-78 9. FISCAL YEAR 2013 AND 2014 BUDGET  
Recommend that the Board adopt the 2-year budget, or continue this item to a future meeting. 
 

Pg 79-84 10. AWARD CONTRACT FOR DISTRICT AUDIT SERVICES 
Recommend that the Board determine auditor selection and award contract. 
 

 11. APPOINTMENTS TO CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Recommend that the Board review applications and take action to appoint new members to the CAC if 
desired. 
 

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING JUNE 6, 2012    Page 2 of 2 
 

  
 
12. 

 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

  A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Long: Kathleen 
Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report 

B. AD HOC GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATION COMMITTEE: President 
Reynolds and Director Long: 

C. AD HOC STRATEGIC PLAN COMMITTEE:  Director Coate and Director Long 
D. AD HOC UTILITY SERVICES CONTRACT COMMITEEE: Director Coate and Director Long 
E. AD HOC RECHARGE COMMITTEE:  Director Long and Director Coate 
F. CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE: Jay St. Gaudens, Chair 
 

 13. PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s jurisdiction that are not 
listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone.  The Board may not discuss at length or take action on 
items not on the agenda. 
 

 14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 15. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 

 16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 17. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 18. CLOSED SESSION 
A. At this time the Board will go into closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 in 

order for the Board to consult with and instruct the Board's Ad Hoc Negotiation Committee (Mike 
Reynolds and Bill Long), which is acting as the Board's designated representative and is charged 
with the responsibility of negotiating a new Employment Agreement with the District's General 
Manager. 

B. At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 in 
order to consult with the District's General Manager and General Counsel concerning the release of 
an employee due to the elimination of a position attributable to a Reduction in Force/Reorganization. 

 

 

 19. ADJOURNMENT 
 

INFORMATION 
 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 
District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 
 

This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on June 13 at 7:00 pm and June 20 at 7:00 pm. 
DVD recordings of Joshua Basin Water District Board meetings are available at the District office  

and at the Joshua Tree Library. 



 

                   MINUTES REGULAR BOARD MEETING AND SPECIAL CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MAY 16, 2012    
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
AND SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

May 16, 2012 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:48 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Frank Coate 
Bill Long 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
Anne Roman, Accountant 
Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 10 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
        MSC Long/Luckman 5/0 to approve the agenda for the regular meeting of May 16, 2012. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Barbara Delph of Joshua Tree commented in favor of the recharge project, and suggested that the 
USGS study be posted on the District’s website. 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to approve the Minutes of the May 2, 2012 Regular Board meeting; to 
approve the financial report for April 2012 and to approve the check audit report for April 2012. 
 

7. 12/13 – 13/14 BUDGET PRESENTATION 
JBWD Citizens Advisory Committee chair Jay St. Gaudens called the special meeting of the Citizens 
Advisory Committee to order at 7:51 pm. The following committee members were in attendance:  Jay 
St. Gaudens, Penny Mason, Karen Tracy, and Barbara Delph. 
 
General Manager Joe Guzzetta reported that this is the initial presentation of the proposed draft budget 
and there will be several more opportunities to review and make updates prior to the expected date of 
adoption. The draft program budget and supplemental budget were reviewed, and variances to the 
current budget were noted. 
 
President Reynolds appointed an Ad Hoc Budget Committee consisting of himself and Director Coate. 
 



 

                   MINUTES REGULAR BOARD MEETING AND SPECIAL CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MAY 16, 2012    
Page 2 of 3 

 

8. CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE (CAC) REPORT ON CAC APPOINTMENT AND 
MEMBERSHIP GUIDELINES 
CAC chair Jay St. Gaudens reported that the Committee met on May 15th and reviewed the proposed 
guidelines for CAC membership; the following recommendations were made: include the CAC in the 
District’s Administration Code; Committee members should be required to be registered voters in the 
Joshua Basin Water District; candidates for membership should demonstrate an interest in water-
related issues; members should have ethics training; a cover letter or bio should be accepted in lieu of 
a resume with the application form; the CAC application form should request the following 
information, if legal: applicants must be adults 18 years of age or older and disclose any felony 
convictions. 
 

9. AD HOC CAC COMMITTEE REPORT ON CAC APPOINTMENT AND MEMBERSHIP 
GUIDELINES 
Vice President Luckman commented that she felt CAC members should be stakeholders but should 
not necessarily be required to be registered voters in the District. Director Coate stated that anyone is 
welcome to attend CAC meetings and Board meetings, where there is an opportunity to comment on 
items under consideration, however he feels that CAC members should be registered voters in the 
District. 
MSC Coate/Long 3/2  to accept the recommendations  of the Citizens Advisory Committee to have the 
members be registered voters in the District and to accept the other recommendations of the Citizens 
Advisory Committee for guidelines for membership on the CAC. 
   Coate  Aye 
   Long  Aye 
   Luckman No  
   Reynolds No 
   Wilson  Aye 
 

10. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Long; Kathleen 

Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant reported that Mike Stevens of Mojave Water Agency is 
retiring this month; the Chaparral Artists visited the demonstration garden in April. The Public 
Information Committee will meet on May 23rd. 

B. AD HOC GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATION COMMITTEE: President 
Reynolds and Director Long: No report. 

C. AD HOC STRATEGIC PLAN COMMITTEE: Director Coate and Director Long:  Director Long 
reported that the committee will meet with the general manager this Friday. 

D. AD HOC UTILITY SERVICES CONTRACT COMMITTEE:  Director Coate and Director Long: 
No report. 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Barbara Delph of Joshua Tree commented in favor of having legal counsel attend each Board meeting. 
Al Marquez of Joshua Tree commented opposing having legal counsel at Board meetings. 
Alexis Sonnenberg of Joshua Tree asked about water being discharged; GM Guzzetta explained the 
water is due to flushing a well that was recently renovated. 
 

12. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
GM Guzzetta reported that Mojave Water Agency is assisting District staff to determine the 



 

                   MINUTES REGULAR BOARD MEETING AND SPECIAL CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MAY 16, 2012    
Page 3 of 3 

 

population of the District and the number should be verified by the next Board meeting. The general 
manager is working with ESA environmental consultants and intends to retain the company to do an 
initial survey to determine whether artifacts exist which may focus the need for monitors for the 
recharge project. The general manager requested that an ad hoc committee be formed for recharge; 
President Reynolds appointed Director Long and Director Coate to the Ad Hoc Groundwater Recharge 
Committee. 
 

13. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 
Mr. Granito reported on Senate Bill 1011 which, if passed, would allow a fee to be charged for 
personnel time and a deposit to be collected prior to production of documents in response to public 
document requests. 
 

14. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Vice President Luckman requested discussion of a sexual harassment prevention training requirement 
for directors. 
 

15. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Vice President Luckman reported attending the Association of California Water Agencies conference 
where she heard a seminar on talking to the public about water rights. 
President Reynolds attended the Association of California Water Agencies conference and noted that 
the average American knows the exact cost of the cable bill but does not know the amount of the water 
bill. He also learned of current regulatory changes that impact water storage design and nitrates in 
groundwater. 
 
The Special Meeting of the Citizens Advisory Committee was adjourned at 9:06. 
MSC Tracy/Mason 4/0 to adjourn the May 16, 2012 Special meeting of the Citizens Advisory 
Committee. 
 

16. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
The Board went to closed session at 9:06 pm; the meeting resumed in open session at 9:35 pm. 
Mr. Granito stated that no reportable action took place during the closed session. 
 

17. ADJOURNMENT    
 The meeting was adjourned at 9:37 pm. 

 Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for June 6, 2012 at 7:00 pm. 

 

 



 

                   MINUTES SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MAY 16, 2012    Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

May 16, 2012 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 
 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Frank Coate 

Bill Long 

Mickey Luckman 

Mike Reynolds 

Gary Wilson 
 

Present 

Present 

Present 

Present 

Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 

Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 

Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 

Anne Roman, Accountant 

Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 10 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MSC Long/Luckman 5/0 to approve the agenda for the special meeting of May 16, 2012. 
 

5. RECHARGE PROJECT BASIN SITE FENCING 

General Manager Guzzetta reported two bids were received and one protest was received. The protest was 

not valid. Extended discussion followed regarding the two bids, including request by the Board to see the 

project specifications. Vice President Reynolds suggested that the Board review project specifications 

before they go out to bid. 

MSC  Long/Coate  5/0 to reject all bids received for the Recharge Basin Security and Tortoise Fence and re-

advertise for bids. 

 

6. RESOLUTION 12-888 FOR PROPOSITION 84 GRANT 

GM Guzzetta reported that the District has been awarded an additional 3.2 million grant; this gives the 

District the ability to go to bid for construction of the Recharge Basin and Pipeline Project. 

Steven Whitman of Joshua Tree commented opposing 10% contingency budgeted for projects.  

Al Marquez of Joshua Tree commented opposing the recharge project. 

Jay St Gaudens of Joshua Tree commented in favor of the recharge project. 

MSC Coate/Long 4/1 to approve staff recommendation to adopt Resolution 12-888 authorizing signature of 

a funding agreement and related documents for funding under the safe drinking water, water quality and 

supply, flood control, river and coastal protection bond act of 2006 (Proposition 84); and to authorize the 

GM to commit the use of $400,000 from the District opportunity reserves if needed to complete the 

project 

   Coate  Aye 



 

                   MINUTES SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MAY 16, 2012    Page 2 of 2 
 

   Long  Aye 

   Luckman Aye  

   Reynolds Aye 

   Wilson  No 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT   7:48 PM 

MSC Long/Luckman 5/0 to adjourn the May 16 2012 Special Meeting of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

 

Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 

The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for June 6, 2012 at 7:00 pm. 
 

 



Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE  
 TOC-1 

RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 PAGE 

 
NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS) NIB 1 
 
BID DOCUMENTS 

 
Instructions to Bidders .......................................................................................................................BD 1 

Proposals ......................................................................................................................................BD 1 
Agreement and Bonds .................................................................................................................BD 2 
Withdrawal of Bids ......................................................................................................................BD 2 
Insurance and Hold Harmless Requirements ..............................................................................BD 2 
Licenses and Permits ...................................................................................................................BD 4 
Substitution of Securities .............................................................................................................BD 4 
Subcontractors .............................................................................................................................BD 5 
Non Debarred Contractors and Subcontractors ..........................................................................BD 5 

Proposal ..............................................................................................................................................BD 6 
Bid ......................................................................................................................................................BD 8 
Addendum ..........................................................................................................................................BD 9 
Bid Certification.................................................................................................................................BD 10 
Bid Bond ............................................................................................................................................BD 11 
Statement by Bidder - Non-Collusion Affidavit ...............................................................................BD 12 
Statement by Bidder - Officers of Corporation .................................................................................BD 13 
Statement by Bidder - Subcontractors List ........................................................................................BD 14 
Statement by Bidder - Qualification and Experience Statement .......................................................BD 15 
Statement by Bidder - General Information ......................................................................................BD 16 
 
16BCONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
Agreement ..........................................................................................................................................CD 1 
Worker's Compensation Insurance Certification ...............................................................................CD 4 
Performance Bond .............................................................................................................................CD 5 
Labor and Material Bond ...................................................................................................................CD 6 
Escrow Agreement for Security Deposit in Lieu of Retention .........................................................CD 7 
 



Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE  
 TOC-2 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  
(Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, 2006 Edition) 
 
Section 1 Terms, Definitions, Abbreviations, and Symbols .............................................................. GC 1 
Section 2 Scope and Control of Work ............................................................................................... GC 1 
Section 3 Changes in Work ............................................................................................................... GC 2 
Section 4 Control of Materials ........................................................................................................... GC 3 
Section 5 Utilities .............................................................................................................................. GC 4 
Section 6 Prosecution, Progress and Acceptance of the Work .......................................................... GC 4 
Section 7 Responsibilities of the Contractor ..................................................................................... GC 4 
Section 8 Facilities for District Personnel ......................................................................................... GC 12 
Section 9 Measurement and Payment ................................................................................................ GC 12 
Section 10 Assignment of Unfair Business Practices Claims.............................................................. GC 14 
Section 11 Hazardous Materials .......................................................................................................... GC 14 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
Section 1 Scope of Work ................................................................................................................... SC 1 
Section 2 Work Site ........................................................................................................................... SC 1 
Section 3 Contract Drawings ............................................................................................................. SC 2 
Section 4 Time of Completion ........................................................................................................... SC 2 
Section 5 Working Days and Working Hours ................................................................................... SC 2 
Section 6 Construction Staking ......................................................................................................... SC 3 
Section 7 Specifications and Drawings ............................................................................................. SC 3 
Section 8 Utilities .............................................................................................................................. SC 3 
Section 9 Scheduling and Order of Work .......................................................................................... SC 4 
Section 10 Preconstruction, Progress Meetings & Daily Reports ....................................................... SC 4 
Section 11 Safety ................................................................................................................................. SC 5 
Section 12 Examination of Plans, Specifications and Site of Work .................................................... SC 5 
Section 13 Permits, Certificates, Laws, and Ordinances ..................................................................... SC 5 
Section 14 Compliance with Contract Drawings ................................................................................. SC 6 
Section 15 Preservation of Paved Surfaces, Environmental Factors, Restoration of Work Sites, 

and Disposal of Spill and Waste Material ......................................................................... SC 6 
Section 16 Subsurface Conditions  ...................................................................................................... SC 7 
 
 

 
 
 



 
Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE 
 NIB-1 

NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS) 
 

RECEIPT AND OPENING OF BIDS 

A. Sealed Proposals (Bids) will be received only at Joshua Basin Water District (District), 61750 Chollita 
Road, Joshua Tree, California, 92252, Telephone (760) 366-8438 until 3:00 PM on June 7th, 2012, for 
the construction of the Work entitled: 

 Recharge Basin Security and Tortoise Fence 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: Installation of a 6’-0” chain link security fence, including 3 strand barb 
wire and integral tortoise exclusion fence at the Joshua Basin Water District’s future groundwater 
recharge facility site. Constructed project includes all utility location and verification (verifying 
location and depth of utility facilities within project limits); all site work including: protecting in place 
all existing utilities, trees, and public and private improvements; excavation for and construction of 
concrete footings; installation of fence and appurtenances; and restoring all areas and improvements to 
pre-construction conditions. 

 

SITE OF WORK: District owned future recharge facility site located at the easterly end of Verbena 
Road, between Sunburst Street and Border Avenue, in Joshua Tree, CA. 

 

B. Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at the place and time stated above. Bidders are invited to be 
present. 

 

SECURING BID DOCUMENTS. Bidders may examine the Contract Documents, defined below, at the Joshua 
Basin Water District at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California  92252 or at Dudek., 40-004 Cook Street, 
Palm Desert, California  92211. Copies of said Plans, Specifications and Contract Documents are available for 
purchase on CD at the addresses above. No time extensions or other consideration will be given for non-receipt 
of bidding documents by any prospective bidder.  

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. Contract Documents include the following: 

• The approved Drawings and Specifications issued by the District;  

INFORMATIONAL DOCUMENTS. None  

CONTRACT TIME. The Contract Time is hereby established as 15 working days. The Contract Time shall be 
tracked in accordance with Section 6-7 of the Standard Specifications. 

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. The fixed liquidated damages amount is hereby established as $500 for each 
calendar day of unauthorized delay in completion of the Work. 

BIDS. Bidders must comply with and agree to all instructions and requirements in this Notice and in the 
Instructions to Bidders, including post-bidding procedures. 

A. All Bids must be submitted on the prescribed Bid Form. 

B. Requests for interpretation of the Contract Documents shall be submitted to the District not later than the 
7th day preceding the date set for the receipt of Bids. 

C. The successful Bidder shall execute the Contract Agreement within ten (10) days (not including Sundays 
and holidays) after the date of the Notice of Award. 

D. The successful Bidder shall furnish insurance in accordance with the Contract Documents within ten 
(10) days of execution of the Contract Agreement.  



 
Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE 
 NIB-2 

E. The District may withhold issuance of the Notice to Proceed for a period not to exceed 90 calendar days 
after the date the Contract Agreement is executed. 

F. The Contractor shall start the Work within 10 calendar days after the date of the Notice to Proceed. 

G. SECURITY SUBSTITUTIONS FOR MONEYS WITHHELD TO INSURE CONTRACTOR'S 
PERFORMANCE. In accordance with Section 22300 of the State of California Public Contract Code, 
the Contractor at his request and expense, will be permitted to substitute equivalent securities for any 
monies withheld to insure performance. Refer to applicable portions of the Escrow Agreement (SC 7) 
for Security Deposits in Lieu of Performance Retention included with the Contract Documents. Earnings 
will not be retained. 

H. Contractor shall possess a valid Class "A" or “C-13” Contractor's License at the time of bid submission 
and award of the Contract. 

I. It is the Contractor’s responsibility to determine the general prevailing rate of per diem wages in the 
locality in which this work is to be performed for each craft or type of worker needed to execute the 
contract. These rates are on file at the following website:  Hwww.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWDH.  

J. Joshua Basin Water District reserves the right to reject any and all bids and waive any informalities or 
irregularities. 

K. Pre-bid Conference. A specific pre-bid conference will NOT be held for this project. Prospective bidders 
are invited to present any relevant questions in writing via US Mail, facsimile or email to Dudek at the 
addresses and telephone numbers listed below.  Questions must arrive at least three (3) days prior to the 
bid opening to allow time for distributing answers and/or clarifications to plan holders.  

  
 
 Dudek: 605 Third Street Encinitas, CA 92024 
 Contact: Mike Metts /Charles Greely 
 Facsimile: 760 346-6118 Email: mmetts@dudek.com, cgreely@dudek.com 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
mailto:mmetts@dudek.com
mailto:mmetts@dudek.com
mailto:mmetts@dudek.com
mailto:mmetts@dudek.com
mailto:mmetts@dudek.com
mailto:mmetts@dudek.com
mailto:mmetts@dudek.com
mailto:mmetts@dudek.com


 
Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0BBID DOCUMENTS 
 



Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE BD-1

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
For 
 

Recharge Basin Security and Tortoise Fence 
 

 
 Bids to receive consideration shall be made in accordance with the following instructions: 
 
1. PROPOSALS: 
 
 a. Bids shall be made upon the form of proposal included in these specifications.  All 

Bids shall be properly executed with all items filled in; the signatures of all persons 
signing shall be in longhand.  If the unit price and the total amount named by a Bidder 
for any item are not in agreement, the unit price shall be considered as representing 
the Bidder's intention, and the totals will be corrected by the Engineer to conform 
thereto. 

 
 b. Proposals may be rejected if they show any alterations of form, additions not called 

for, conditional or alternative bids, incomplete Bids, erasures, or irregularities of any 
kind.  Mistakes shall be lined through and the correct amount written above and 
initialed by the authorized agent of the Bidder. 

 
 c. Bids shall be accompanied by a cashier's or a certified check or Bidder's admitted 

corporate surety bond, in an amount not less that ten percent (10%) of the bid, made 
payable to the Joshua Basin Water District.  Said check or bond shall be given as a 
guarantee that the Bidder will enter into a contract if awarded the work, and in case of 
refusal or failure to enter into said Contract, within fourteen (14) days after Notice of 
Award by the District in writing, the security shall be applied by the District to the 
difference between such bid and next lowest acceptable bid and the surplus, if any, 
shall be returned to Bidder if cash or check is used, or to Surety if bid bond is used. 

 
 d. Before submitting a bid, Bidders shall carefully examine the Plans; read the 

Specifications; read all other Contract documents; shall visit the site of the work; shall 
fully inform themselves as to all existing conditions and limitations; and include in the 
bid a sum to cover the cost of all items included in the Contract.  No allowance will be 
made due to lack of examination or knowledge. 

 

e. Pursuant to Labor Code section 1770 et seq., the successful bidder shall pay not less 
than the prevailing rate of per diem wage for each craft, classification, or type of 
worker needed to execute the contract.  These rates are on file at the following website:  
Hwww.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWDH.  The Contractor is encouraged to download these rates, and a copy 
of these rates shall be posted at the job site. 

 
 f. The Bid Proposal Form and supporting documents, pages BD-6 through BD-17, must 

be submitted on or before the date and time specified in the Notice Inviting Sealed 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD


Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE BD 2

Proposals (Bids).  The bid shall be submitted in a sealed envelope marked in the lower 
left corner as follows: 

 
BID FOR:   

Recharge Basin Security and Tortoise Fence 
` 
 g. Bids will be opened and publicly read aloud at the time set in the Notice Inviting Sealed 

Proposals (Bids), in the Office of the Joshua Basin Water District, 61750 Chollita Road, 
Joshua Tree, CA 92252. 

 h.  It is understood and agreed that the Joshua Basin Water District has the right to waive 
defects or irregularities and to accept or reject any or all Bids.   

 
2. AGREEMENT AND BONDS: 
 
 The form of Contract which the successful Bidder, as Contractor, will be required to 

execute is included in the Contract documents and should be carefully examined by the 
Bidder.  The Agreement, admitted Corporate Surety Bonds and other documents to be 
executed by the Contractor shall be executed in original-duplicates stamped according to 
law, one of which original-duplicates shall be filed with the Joshua Basin Water District. 
The successful Bidder, simultaneously with the execution of the Agreement, will be 
required to furnish a faithful performance bond and a labor and material bond, in an 
amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract price.  Said bonds shall 
provide that if the Contractor or their Subcontractor fails to pay for any materials, 
provision, provender or other supplies or items used in, upon, for or about the performance 
of the work contracted to be done, or for any work of labor thereon of any kind, or for 
amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act or Workman's Compensation, with 
respect to such work or labor, that the surety or sureties will pay for the same.  The amount 
shall not exceed the sum specified in the bond, and also, in case suit is brought upon the 
bond, a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court.  All bonds shall be secured from 
surety companies satisfactory to the Joshua Basin Water District and whose name is on file 
with the County Clerk of San Bernardino County, as an approved and financially sound 
surety company authorized to transact business in this state. 

 
3. WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS: 
 
 a. Any Bidder may withdraw his Bid, only by written request, at any time prior to the 

scheduled time for Bid Opening. 
 
 b. No Bidder may withdraw his Bid for a period of sixty (60) days after the time of Bid 

Opening. 
 
4. INSURANCE AND HOLD HARMLESS REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 Before entering into a Contract, the Bidder to whom the Contract has been awarded shall 

furnish satisfactory evidence that they have secured full Worker's Compensation Insurance 
and Comprehensive General Public Liability Insurance from a responsible insurance company 
authorized to do business in California and satisfactory to the District, and such insurance 
shall be maintained in full force and effect at the Contractor's own expense during the life of 



Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE BD 3

the Contract.  Contractor shall furnish the District with the customary Certificates of 
Insurance for both Workman's Compensation and Comprehensive General Liability Insurance 
in accordance with the requirements listed below.  General Liability Insurance shall name the 
District, its Engineer and Consultants, as an additional insured and shall be primary and non-
contributing to any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District.  The final list of 
additional insured shall be supplied by the District to the successful bidder. All liability 
insurance policies shall bear an endorsement or shall have attached a rider whereby it is 
provided that, in the event of expiration or proposed cancellation of such policies for any 
reason whatsoever, the District shall be notified by registered mail, return receipt requested, 
giving sufficient time before the date thereof to comply with any applicable law or statute, but 
in no event less than thirty (30) days before expiration or cancellation is effective. 

 
 The coverage shall provide the following minimum limits and language as follows: 
  

A. Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Contractor shall have worker’s 
compensation and employer’s liability insurance in force throughout the duration of 
the contract in an amount which meets the statutory requirement with an insurance 
carrier acceptable to the District.  The insurance policy shall include a provision 
prohibiting cancellation of said policy except upon thirty (30) days prior written 
notice to District.  Certificates of Insurance shall be delivered to District within ten 
(10) days of execution of the agreement. 

 
B. Contractor expressly waives all rights to subrogation against the District, its officers, 

employees and volunteers for losses arising from work performed by Contractor for 
District by expressly waiving Contractor’s immunity for injuries to Contractor’s 
employees and agrees that the obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
provided for in this Agreement extend to any claim brought by or on behalf of any 
employee of Contractor.  This waiver is mutually negotiated by the parties.  This shall 
not apply to any damage resulting from the sole negligence of District, its agents and 
employees.  To the extent any of the damages referenced herein were caused by or 
resulted from the concurrent negligence of District, its agents or employees, the 
obligations provided herein to indemnify, defend and hold harmless are valid and 
enforceable only to the extent of the negligence of contractor, its officers, agents and 
employees. 

 
C. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance. Contractor shall secure and maintain in 

force throughout the duration of the contract comprehensive general Liability insurance 
covering all work under this Agreement, including work done by subcontractors, with 
carriers acceptable to the District.  Minimum coverages of one million dollars 
($1,000,000) per occurrence and three million dollars ($3,000,000) aggregate for public 
liability, property damage, death and bodily injury is required.  The District, its 
Engineer and Consultants shall be named as an additional insured and the insurance 
policy shall include a provision prohibiting cancellation of said policy except upon 
thirty (30) days prior written notice to the District. 

 



Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE BD 4

D. Subcontractors.  The prime contractor shall include all subcontractors as insured’s 
under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements from each 
subcontractor. 

 
 The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, in whole or in part, without the 

written consent of the District, nor shall the contractor assign any monies due to, or to 
become due to, Contractor hereunder without prior written consent of the District. 

 
 The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the District for the acts and omissions of 

the subcontractor and persons either directly or indirectly employed by the 
Contractor.  Consent to subcontracting part of the work shall, in no way, release the 
Contractor from responsibility for performance of the work, and Contractor will be 
held, in all respects, accountable for the same as if no consent had been given.  The 
Contractor shall give personal attention to this work which is sublet.  Nothing 
contained in the contract documents shall create any contractual relation between any 
subcontractor and the District. 

 
E. Business Auto Liability Insurance.   Contractor shall carry business auto liability 

coverage, with minimum limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence, 
combined single limit for bodily injury liability and property damage liability.  This 
coverage shall include all Contractor owned vehicles used on the Agreement, hired 
and non-owned vehicles, and employee non-ownership vehicles. 

 
F. Hold Harmless and Indemnification.  Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and 

defend District and its elected officials, agents and employees, its Engineer and the 
Consultants from and against any and all claims, losses or liability, including 
attorney’s fees, arising from injury or death to persons or damage to property 
occasioned by any act, omission or failure to act of Contractor, its subcontractors, and 
any officers, agents and employees in performing the work required by this 
Agreement.  Contractor’s obligations under this provision shall not be limited in any 
way by any terms of this Agreement, or the insurance limits. 

 
5. LICENSES AND PERMITS: 
 
 No bid will be accepted from a Contractor who is not licensed in accordance with the law 

under the provisions of Division III, Chapter 9 of the Business and Professions Code of the 
State of California. 

 
 The Contractor shall, at the time of bid opening, possess a valid “Class A" or “C-13” 

Contractor's license, and provide its California State Contractor’s License number to the 
District. 

 
 The Contractor shall, prior to Notice to Proceed, procure all other permits and licenses as 

stipulated in the GENERAL CONDITIONS. 
 
 
 



Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE BD 5

 
 
 
 
6. SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES: 
 

In accordance with applicable provisions of State law, the Contractor will be permitted to 
substitute qualified securities in lieu of retention of withheld progress payments by the 
District. 
 

7. SUBCONTRACTORS: 
 

 Pursuant to Section 4110 and 4111 of the California Public Contract Code, the bidder may 
not circumvent the requirement to list subcontractors by the device of listing one 
subcontractor, who in turn sublets portions constituting a majority of the work covered by 
the contract.” 

 
A. Pursuant to California Government Code section 4106, subcontractors licensed in 

accordance with Chapter 9 of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code (The 
Contractors’ State License Law) who will perform work or labor or render services in 
an amount in excess of one-half of one percent of the Contractor’s total bid shall be 
set forth in a list of subcontractors within the bid documents.  Such list shall be 
accompanied by an experience statement with pertinent information regarding 
similar projects and other evidence of qualifications for each such subcontractor, 
supplier, individual, or entity if requested by District.  If District, after doing an 
investigation, has reasonable objection to any proposed subcontractor, supplier, 
individual, or entity, District may, before the notice of award is given, request the 
apparent successful bidder to submit a substitute, without an increase in the bid. 

 
B. If the apparent successful bidder declines to make any such substitution, District 

may award the contract to the next lowest bidder that proposes to use acceptable 
subcontractors, suppliers, individuals, or entities. Declining to make the request of 
substitutions will not constitute grounds for forfeiture of the bid security of any 
bidder.  Any subcontractor, supplier, individual or entity so listed and against which 
District makes no written objection prior to the giving of the notice of award will be 
deemed successful by District subject to verification of such assessments after the 
effective date of the agreement as provided herein. 

 
8. NON DEBARRED CONTRACTORS AND SUBCONTRACTORS    
 

 The Contractor and all of its subcontractors shall, at the time of bid opening and for 
performance of this public works contract, be non-debarred contractors and not be 
ineligible Contractors pursuant to Public Contract Code section 6109 and Labor Code 
sections 1777.1 and 1777.7. 

 
 
 



Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE BD 6

 
 
 
 

 
 

BID PROPOSAL FORM 
 
 
Joshua Basin Water District 
61750 Chollita Road 
Joshua Tree, California 92252 
 
Gentlemen: 
 
The undersigned hereby proposes to perform all Work for which a Contract may be awarded him/her and to 
furnish any and all plant, labor, services, material, tools, equipment, supplies, transportation, utilities, water 
and all other items and facilities necessary therefore as provided in the Contract Documents, and to do 
everything required therein for the Work as set forth in the documents entitled: 
 

Recharge Basin Security and Tortoise Fence 
 

Together with appurtenances thereto, all as set forth on the Drawings and in the Specifications and other 
Contract Documents; and he/she further proposes and agrees that, if this Bid is accepted, he/she will contract in 
the form and manner stipulated to perform all the Work called for by Drawings, Specifications, and other 
Contract Documents, and to complete all such Work in strict conformity therewith within the time limits set 
forth therein, and that he/she will accept as full payment therefore the prices set forth in the Bid Sheet(s) 
forming a part hereof. 
 
It is understood and agreed that: 
 

1. The undersigned has carefully examined all the Contract Documents which will form a part of 
the Contract; and all additions, deletions, modifications, appendices, and all addenda as 
prepared prior to the date of bid opening setting forth any modifications or interpretations of 
any of said documents. 

 
2. The undersigned has by investigation of the site of the Work and otherwise satisfied 

himself/herself as to the nature and location of the Work and has fully informed 
himself/herself as to all conditions and matters which can in any way affect the Work or the 
cost thereof; 

 
3. The undersigned fully understands the scope of the Work and has checked carefully all words 

and figures inserted in this Bid and he/she further understands that the District will in no way 
be responsible for any errors or omissions in the preparation of this Bid; 

 
4. The undersigned will execute the Contract Agreement and furnish the required proof of 

insurance coverage within ten (10) days (not including Sundays and holidays) after Notice of 
Award to him/her of acceptance of his/her Bid by the District.  

 
5. The undersigned Bidder further agrees that if he/she shall fail to complete the Work within 

the Contract Time and any authorized extension thereof, he/she shall pay liquidated damages 
to the District for each calendar day of unauthorized delay in completion of the Work, until 



Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE BD 7

the Work is completed, unless another amount is agreed to and stated in the Contract 
Agreement. 

 
6. The undersigned hereby certifies that this proposal is not made in the interest of, or on behalf 

of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; 
that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly 
induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or 
indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a 
sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, 
directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix 
the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element 
of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public 
body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all statements 
contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, 
submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged 
information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, 
partnership, company association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent 
thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid. 

 
7. In conformance with current statutory requirements of Section 1860, et seq., of the Labor 

Code of the State of California, the undersigned confirms the following as his/her 
certification: I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workmen's compensation or to undertake 
self insurance in accordance with the provisions before commencing the performance of the 
Work of this Contract: 

 
8. In compliance with the provisions of Sections 4l00-4l14 of the Public Contract Code of the 

State of California, and any amendments thereof, the undersigned Bidder has set forth below 
the name and the location of the place of business of each Subcontractor who will perform 
work or labor or render service to the Contractor in or about the construction of the Work to 
be performed under the Contract Documents in which this Bid is responsive, and where the 
portion of the Work which will be done by each Subcontractor for each subcontract is in 
excess of one-half of one percent (0.5%) of the Total Base Bid. The undersigned Bidder 
understands that if he/she fails to specify a Subcontractor for any portion of the Work or 
specifies more than one subcontractor for any portion of the work, he/she shall be deemed to 
have agreed to perform such portion himself/herself and that he/she shall not be permitted to 
sublet or subcontract that portion of the Work except in cases of public emergency or 
necessity, and then only after a finding is reduced to writing as a public record of the District 
setting forth the facts constituting the emergency or necessity. It is further understood and 
agreed that the aggregate total of all subcontracts shall not exceed forty-five percent (45%) of 
the total contract price in accordance with the provisions of Instructions to Bidders and or 
General Conditions. 

 
9. The undersigned hereby states that he/she *   previously performed work 

subject to the provisions of the President's Executive Order No. 11246 relative to 
nondiscrimination in employment. 

 
* The Bidder shall insert "has" or "has not", as applicable in the above statement. 

 
10. Receipt is hereby acknowledged of addenda number(s)   through  

 . 
 



Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE BD 8

11. The undersigned is licensed in accordance with the Laws of the State of California: License 
Number   Class   . 

 
12. If the bidder is a partnership, corporation, or joint venture, the undersigned certifies that s/he 

is entitled to execute and submit this bid proposal on behalf of bidder. 
 

NOW: In compliance with all the provisions herein before stipulated, the undersigned, with full 
cognizance thereof, hereby proposes to perform the entire Work for the prices set forth in the attached 
Schedule(s) upon which Award of Contract is made. 

 
 
Individual Name:  
 
Contractor Address:  
 
Partnership Name:          
 

Business Address:        
 
         
 
By:         , Partner 

 
Other Partners:         

 
       

 
Corporation Name:  
 

Business Address:  
 

 
 

By:         
 

                                                     , President 
 

                                                     , Secretary 
 

Organized under the laws of the State of                               
 
   Date:                Contractor:        
 
 
 
 
(Place      By:                                 
Seal                                       
Here)  
 

 
 



Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE BD 9

 
 
 

RECHARGE BASIN SECURTIY AND TORTOISE FENCE BID 
 
 
This is a lump sum bid. Contractor herby proposes to furnish all labor, material, equipment and 
incidentals required to complete the work herein, all in accordance with the contract plans and 
specifications for the Recharge Basin Security and Tortoise Fence. The successful bidder will be 
required to submit for approval a detailed schedule of values following award of the contract.  
 
 
Recharge Basin Security and Tortoise Fence    (Lump Sum)                                   _  
 
                                     
Total Bid $                                                       __ ____ 
 
 
Total Bid (in words)              _______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
ADDENDA 
 
Receipt of the following addenda is hereby acknowledged and the same is included in the Bid Price: 
 
Addendum #1___________      Addendum #2___________      Addendum #3____________  
   (initials)  (initials) (initials) 
 
 
Addendum #4___________      Addendum #5___________      Addendum #6____________  
   (initials) (initials) (initials)  
 
ATTEST:  (if Corporation) 
 
(Corporation Seal) 
 
 
___________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Company Name  Signature 
 
____________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Address   Name 
 
____________________________________ _____________________________________ 
City, State, Zip  Title 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   BD 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BID CERTIFICATION 
 
The undersigned certifies that they are familiar with the various State and local laws affecting labor, 
length of working days, employer's liabilities, Sunday work, alien labor, domestic materials, 
Subcontractors, etc. 
 
It is understood and agreed that the work under the contract will be commenced by the undersigned 
Bidder, if awarded the contract, within ten (10) calendar days from the date in the Notice to Proceed 
and will be completed by the Contractor in the time set forth in the AGREEMENT. 
 
Enclosed find Bidders bond or certified or cashier's check No. _________________ on the 
__________________________________ Bank, in the amount of ______________________ 
_______________________ which is not less than ten percent (10%) of the Bid submitted by the 
undersigned, made payable to the Joshua Basin Water District and which is given as a guarantee 
that the Bidder agrees that in case of their default in executing said contract with necessary bonds, 
the bond or check accompanying this Bid and the money made payable shall become and remain 
the property of the Joshua Basin Water District.  
 
It is understood and agreed that the Joshua Basin Water District has the right to waive defects or 
irregularities and to accept or reject any or all Bids.  No Bidder may withdraw their Bid for a period 
of sixty (60) days after the time of the Bid Opening. 
 
The following information, required by State law under penalty of perjury, is true and correct.  
Failure to complete this information renders the bid non-responsive, and the bid will be 
rejected. 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________  
Company Name  Signature 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Address   Signatory's Title 
  
____________________________________ _______________________________________  
City, State, Zip  State License Number and Class 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Telephone Number  License Expiration Date 
 
Dated this ________________  day of ___________________, 20_____. 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   BD 11 

 

BID BOND 
 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, 
 
That ______________________________________________________________ as Principal, and 
______________________________________ as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the 
Joshua Basin Water District, hereinafter called District, in the sum of 
______________________________________ dollars, for the payment of which sum well and 
truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, 
jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, said Principal has submitted a bid to said District to perform all work required under 
the District’s Recharge Basin Security and Tortoise Fence.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, if said Principal is awarded a contract by said District and, within the time 
and in the manner required under the heading "Instructions to Bidders" bound with said 
Specifications, enters into a written contract on the form of agreement bound with said 
Specifications and furnishes the required bonds, one to guarantee faithful performance and the other 
to guarantee payment for labor and materials; then this obligations shall be null and void, otherwise 
it shall remain in full force and effect.  In the event suit is brought upon this bond by said District 
and Judgment is recovered, said Surety shall pay all costs incurred by said District in such suit, 
including a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court. 
 
SIGNED AND SEALED, this _________ day of _____________________________, 20____. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________(SEAL) _______________________________(SEAL) 
(Principal)    (Surety) 
 
By:_________________________________ By:__________________________________ 
    (Signature)        (Signature) 
 
     Address:______________________________ 

     _____________________________________  

     Telephone (___)________________________ 

(Seal and Notarial Acknowledgment of Surety) 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   BD 12 

 

2B STATEMENT BY BIDDER 
 

3B NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 
 
STATE OF        ) 
         )  ss 
COUNTY OF        ) 
 
 
                                                                                       ,  being first duly sworn, deposes and says that 
   
he is                                                                                                                                                           
  (Sole Owner, a Partner, President, Secretary, etc.) 
 
of                                                                                                                                                                
  (Contractor) 
 
the party making the foregoing bid on Recharge Basin Security and Tortoise Fence that such bid 
is not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, partnership, company, 
association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that 
the Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to put in a false or 
sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any 
Bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the 
Bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or 
conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the Bidder or of any other Bidder or to fix any 
overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price or of that of another bidder, or to secure any 
advantage against the public body awarding the Contract of anyone interested in the proposed 
contract; that all statements contained in such bid are true; and further, that the Bidder has not 
directly or indirectly, submitted his bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, 
or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any 
corporation, partnership, company, association organization, bid depository, or to any member or 
agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid. 
 
By: ______________________________ Title:  ________________________________ 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this                    day of __________________________, 20       . 
 
 

           Signature of Officer Administering Oath 
 (Notary Public) 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   BD 13 

 

4BSTATEMENT BY BIDDER 
 

5B OFFICERS OF CORPORATION (Members of Firm) 
 
 
The names of all persons interested in the foregoing proposals as principals, are as follows:  
 
_____________________________________           _____________________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________________           _____________________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________________           _____________________________________ 
 
 
Licensed in accordance with an act providing for the Registration of Contractors, License 
 
No. ______________________________________. 
 
 
Signature of Bidder                                                                           Dated   
 
 
NOTE:  If Bidder is a corporation, the legal name of the corporation shall be set forth above, 
together with the signature of the officer(s) authorized to sign contracts on behalf of the corporation; 
if Bidder is a co-partnership, the true name of the firm shall be set forth above, together with the 
signature of the partner or partners authorized to sign contracts in behalf of the co-partnership, and if 
the Bidder is an individual, that signature shall be placed above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   BD 14 

 

4BSTATEMENT BY BIDDER 
7BSUB-CONTRACTORS LIST 

 
Bidder supplies the following information for any Subcontractor who will perform work or labor or 
render services to the prime contactor, etc. to be used on the Recharge Basin Security and Tortoise 
Fence, all in accordance with Section 4104 of the California Public Contract Code. 
 

List Item # or 
Work under 
which Sub  

Name Address License No. will Perform 
 
                                                                                                      

                                                 

 
                                                                                                       

                                                 

 
                                                                                                      

                                                 

 
                                                                                                     

 
 
 
                                                                                                      

 

 

                                                                                                    

 

 

                                                                                                      

 
 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   BD 15 

 

 
 

8BSTATEMENT BY BIDDER 
9BQUALIFICATION AND EXPERIENCE STATEMENT 

 
The following outline is a record of the undersigned Bidder's experience in construction of three (3) 
projects of a type similar in magnitude and character to that contemplated under the Recharge Basin 
Security and Tortoise Fence project within the past two years.  Include the location of each project 
as well as the name, address, and phone number of the owner, and name of individual to contact. 
 
Subcontractors performing in excess of one half of one percent of the prime Contractor’s total 
bid, or in the construction of streets or highways, one half of one percent of the prime 
contractor’s total bid or ten thousand dollars ($10,000), which ever is greater shall provide a 
similar outline.  Additional pages outlining this portion of the Bid may be attached.  Failure to 
provide this statement may result in rejection of the bid by the Joshua Basin Water District. 
 
1. Owner's Name:        

 Contact Person:                                                                       Phone: (      )    

 Address of Owner:       

 Project Description:       

         

 Amount of Contract:                                                       Completion Date:    

2. Owner's Name:        

 Contact Person:                                                                       Phone: (      )    

 Address of Owner:       

 Project Description:       

         

 Amount of Contract:                                                       Completion Date:    

3.  Owner's Name:        

 Contact Person:                                                                       Phone: (      )    

 Address of Owner:       

 Project Description:       

         

 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   BD 16 

 

10BSTATEMENT BY BIDDER 
11BGENERAL INFORMATION 

 
1. Bidder's Mailing Address         
         
2. Number of years engaged in the contracting business under your present firm or trade name: 
                                                                                                                                                              
3. Have you ever failed to complete any work awarded to you? (Yes or No)               .  If yes, 

provide details in the space provided in Item 10. 
4. Have you ever defaulted on a contract? (Yes or No)               .  If yes, provide details in the 

space provided in Item 10. 
5. Have you ever been a party to a lawsuit or gone to arbitration during the last 5 years? (Yes or 

No)               .  If yes, provide details in the space provided in Item 10. 
6. Has any Stop Notice been filed against you during the last 5 years? (Yes or No)      .  If yes, 

provide details in the space provided in Item 10. 
7. Has your contractor's license ever been suspended, revoked, or subject to disciplinary action? 

(Yes or No)             .  If yes, provide details in the space provided in Item 10. 
8. Contracts currently on hand: 
 Agency Name      Amount of Contract              Start Date                 Completion Date  
         
         
         
         
         
         
 
9. Enter the name of person(s) who inspected the site of the proposed work for your firm and the 

date of said site inspection. 
 Name:                                                                                                                           Date:   
10. In the space provided, the Bidder shall provide details concerning any "Yes" answers 

provided in this "General Information" section.  Details shall include, but not be limited to, 
the nature of dispute, name of the agency involved and the final outcome.  If requested by 
the District, the Bidder shall supply additional information, sufficiently detailed, to permit 
evaluation of the Bidder's ability to perform the work. 

 
 
 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   BD 17 

 

 
Question Number  Details 
 
          
         
         
          
         
         
          
         
         
          
         
         
          
         
         
          
         
         
          
         
         
          
         
         
         
          

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE CD 1 

 

 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this            day of                      , 20___, by and between the 
Joshua Basin Water District, organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, hereinafter 
referred to as the "District”, and ____                       ________________ of the City of _____________ 
County of _______________, State of California, hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor". 

WITNESSETH:  That the District and the Contractor, for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as 
follows: 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor will furnish all materials and will perform all of the work for the 
following: 

Construction of the Recharge Basin Security and Tortoise Fence, all as required by the Contract 
Documents and Specifications. 

2. THE CONTRACT SUM:  $____________ in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the 
Contract Documents. 

 A. Pursuant to Section 22300 of the California Public Contract Code, Contractor has the option to 
deposit securities with an Escrow Agent as a substitute for retention of earnings requirement to be 
withheld by District pursuant to an Escrow Agreement as set forth in the Public Contract Code, 
Section 22300. 

3. TIME FOR COMPLETION:  The work under this Contract is to be completed within fifteen (15) 
working days from and after the date of the Notice to Proceed. 

4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: Failure of the Contractor to complete the work within the time allowed 
will result in damages being sustained by the District.  Such damages are, and will continue to be, 
impracticable and extremely difficult to determine.  The Contractor shall pay to the District, or have 
withheld from monies due it, the sum of $500 for each consecutive calendar day in excess of the 
specified time for completion of the work. 

 Execution of the Contract shall constitute agreement by the District and Contractor that $500 per day is 
the minimum and actual damage caused by the failure of the Contractor to complete the work within the 
allowed time.  Such sum is liquidated damages and shall not be construed as a penalty, and may be 
deducted from payments due the Contractor if such delay occurs. 

5. INSURANCE: Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence that they have secured full Worker's 
Compensation Insurance and Comprehensive General Public Liability Insurance from a responsible 
insurance company authorized to do business in California and satisfactory to the District, and such 
insurance shall be maintained in full force and effect at the Contractor's own expense during the life 
of the Contract.  Contractor shall furnish the District with the customary Certificates of Insurance for 
both Workman's Compensation and Comprehensive General Liability Insurance, including listing 
additional insured, in accordance with the requirements listed in the Instructions to Bidders.   



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE CD 2 

 

6. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The complete contract documents under this Agreement include all of 
the contract documents set forth herein, to wit; Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid 
Proposal Form, Bid Certification, Bid Bond, Agreement, Performance Bond, Labor and Material Bond, 
Plans, General Conditions, Special Conditions, Technical Specifications, District Standard Drawings, 
and any addenda thereto. 

7. ATTORNEYS' FEES: In the event any legal action is commenced to enforce or interpret the terms or 
conditions of the contract documents, the prevailing party in such action, in addition to any costs and 
other relief, shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys' fees. 

8. RESOLUTION OF CONSTRUCTION CLAIMS: Claims by the Contractor in the amount of 
$375,000 or less shall be made by Contractor and processed by the District pursuant to the provisions of 
Part 3, Chapter 1, Article 1.5 of the Public Contract Code (commencing with Section 20104).  All claims 
shall be in writing and include the documents necessary to substantiate the claim.  Nothing in subdivision 
(a) of Public Contract Code Section 20104.2 shall extend the time limit or supersede the notice 
requirements provided in this case from filing claims by Contractor. 

9. ELIGIBILITY OF CONTRACTOR/SUBCONTRACTOR: Contractor and any subcontractors agree 
to abide by California Public Contract Code Section 6109, and California Labor Code Sections 1777.1 
and/or 1777.7, and certify that they are not debarred and are eligible to work on this project. 

10. ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT: No assignment by a party hereto of any rights or interests under 
this agreement will be binding on another party without the written consent of the party sought to be 
bound. 

11. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  District and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, 
assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the 
Contract Documents. 

12. SEVERABILITY: Any provision or part of the contract documents held to be void or unenforceable 
under any law or regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be 
valid and binding upon District and Contractor. 

13. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION: Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless 
and defend District and its elected officials, agents and employees and its Consultants from and 
against any and all claims, losses or liability, including attorney’s fees, arising from injury or death to 
persons or damage to property occasioned by any act, omission or failure to act of Contractor, its 
subcontractors, and any officers, agents and employees in performing the work required by this 
Agreement.  Contractor’s obligations under this provision shall not be limited in any way by any 
terms of this Agreement, or the insurance limits. 

 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE CD 3 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first 
written above. 
 
     Joshua Basin Water District 
(SEAL)    (Owner) 
 
     By:____________________________________ 

President, Board of Directors  
Joshua Basin Water District,  
County of San Bernardino, California 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Secretary, Joshua Basin Water District 
County of San Bernardino, California                                                  (SEAL) 
 
     
         
    __________________________________________ 
         
 
    By:_______________________________________ 
         Signature of Authorized Agent 
 
    __________________________________________ 
    Title 
 
    __________________________________________ 
    Signature of Authorized Agent (if necessary) 
 
    __________________________________________ 
    Title 
 
    __________________________________________ 
 Contractor's License No. 
 
 
 
      
 
 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE CD 4 

 

 
WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE CERTIFICATION 

 
 
Description of Contract:  Joshua Basin Water District 
                RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE 
Labor Code, Section 3700, provides, in part that: 
 

"Every employer except the State, shall secure the payment of compensation in one or more of 
the following ways: 
 
 (a) By being insured against liability to pay compensation in one or more insurer 

duly authorized to write compensation insurance in this State. 
 
 (b) By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to 

self-insure, either as an individual employer, or as one employer in a group of 
employers which may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the Director 
of Industrial Relations of ability to self-insure and to pay any compensation that 
may become due to his or her employees. 

 
I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which requires every employer to be 
insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that Code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of 
the work of this contract. (Labor Code section 1861) 
 
 
Dated this               day of                      , 20       . 
 
 
 _____________________________________  
       (Contractor) 
 
 _____________________________________  
       (Signature) 
 
 _____________________________________  
       (Official Title) 
 
(SEAL) 
 
(Labor Code Section 1861 provides that the above certificate must be signed and filed by the Contractor with 
the District prior to performing the work of the contract.) 
 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE CD 5 

 

PERFORMANCE  BOND 
 
Whereas, the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin Water District, State of California, and   
        (hereinafter designated as “Principal”) 
have entered into an agreement whereby Principal agrees to install and complete certain designated public 
improvements, which said agreement, dated   , 20    , and identified as Construction 
of  RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE  is hereby referred to and made a 
part hereof; and 
 
Whereas, said Principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a bond for the 
performance of said project. 
 
Now, therefore, said Principal and       , as surety, are held 
firmly bound unto the Joshua Basin Water District (hereinafter call “District”), in the penal sum of  
        Dollars ($   ) lawful 
money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, 
our heirs, successors, executors and administrators, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bounded Principal, his or hers heirs, executors, 
administrator, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and 
perform the covenants, conditions and provisions in the said agreement and any alteration thereof made as 
therein provided, or his or their part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein 
specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall defend, indemnify and 
save harmless the District, its elected officials, officers, agents and employees, as therein stipulated, then 
this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 
 
As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition the face amount specified therefore, there shall 
be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by the 
District in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any judgment 
rendered. 
 
The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the 
terms of the agreement or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the 
same shall in anywise affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such 
change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the agreement or to the work or to the 
specifications. 
 
In witness whereof, this instrument has been duly executed by the Principal and surety above named, on 
_______________________20    . 

(SEAL)  (SEAL) 
   

(Contractor)  (Surety) 
  BY: 

(Signature)  (Signature) 
   
  Address:___________________________________ 
  __________________________________________ 
(Seal and Notarial Acknowledgment of 
Surety) 

 Telephone (         )___________________________ 

 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE CD 6 

 

LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND 
 
 
Whereas, the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin Water District, State of California, and   
         (hereinafter designated as 
“Principal”) have entered into an agreement whereby Principal agrees to install and complete certain 
designated public improvements, which said agreement, dated     20   , and 
identified as  RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE.  
is hereby referred to and made a part hereof; and 
 
Whereas, under the terms of said agreement, Principal is required before entering upon the performance 
of the work, to file a good and sufficient payment bond with the Joshua Basin Water District to secure the 
claims to which reference is made in Title 15 (commencing with Section 3082) of Part 4 of Division 3 of 
the Civil Code of the State of California. 
 
Now, therefore, said Principal and the undersigned as corporate surety, are held firmly bound unto the 
Joshua Basin Water District and all contractors, subcontractors, laborers, material men and other persons 
employed in the performance of the aforesaid agreement and referred to in the aforesaid Code of Civil 
Procedure in the sum of                                                         Dollars ($                   ) for materials furnished 
or labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act with respect to 
such work or labor, that said surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the amount hereinabove 
set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay, in addition to the face amount thereof, 
costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by the Joshua 
Basin Water District in successfully enforcing such obligation, to be awarded and fixed by the court, and 
to be taxed as costs and to be included in the judgment therein rendered. 
 
It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall insure to the benefit of any and all 
persons, companies and corporations entitled to file claims under Title 15 (commencing with Section 
3082) of Part 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their assigns in 
any suit brought upon this bond. 
 
Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and void, 
otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 
 
The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the 
terms of said agreement or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any manner affect its 
obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration 
or addition. 
 
In witness whereof, this instrument has been duly executed by the Principal and surety above named, on 
_______________________20    . 
 

(SEAL)  (SEAL) 
   

(Contractor)  (Surety) 
  BY: 

(Signature)  (Signature) 
   
  Address:___________________________________  
  __________________________________________ 
(Seal and Notarial Acknowledgment of Surety)  Telephone (         )___________________________ 

 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE CD 7 

 

ESCROW AGREEMENT FOR SECURITY DEPOSIT IN LIEU OF RETENTION 
 
This Escrow Agreement is made and entered into by and between      

whose address is                                                                                                                                      

hereinafter called "Owner," and                                                                                                               

whose address is                                                                                                                            

hereinafter called "Contractor," and                                                                                                               

whose address is                                                                                                                                                   

hereinafter called "Escrow Agent." 

 
For the consideration hereinafter set forth, the Owner, Contractor, and Escrow Agent agree as 

follows: 
(1)  Pursuant to Section 22300 of the Public Contract Code of the State of California, 

Contractor has the option to deposit securities with an Escrow Agent as a substitute for retention 
earnings required to be withheld by Owner pursuant to the Construction Contract entered into 
between the Owner and Contractor for the RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE 
FENCE dated _____________         (hereinafter referred to as the "Contract").  Alternatively, on 
written request of the Contractor, the Owner shall make payments of the retention earnings directly to 
the Escrow Agent.  When Contractor deposits the securities as a substitute for Contract earnings, the 
Escrow Agent shall notify the Owner within ten (10) days of the deposit.  The market value of the 
securities at the time of the substitution shall be at least equal to the cash amount then required to be 
withheld as retention under the terms of the Contract between the Owner and Contractor.  Securities 
shall be held in the name of        , and shall designate 
the Contractor as the beneficial Owner. 

(2) The Owner shall make progress payments to the Contractor for such funds which 
otherwise would be withheld from progress payments pursuant to the Contract provisions, provided 
that the Escrow Agent holds securities in the form and amount specified above. 

(3) When the Owner makes payment of retention earned directly to the Escrow Agent, 
the Escrow Agent shall hold them for the benefit of the Contractor until such time as the escrow 
created under this Contract is terminated.  The Contractor may direct the investment of the payments 
into securities.  All terms and conditions of this agreement and the rights and responsibilities of the 
parties shall be equally applicable and binding when the Owner pays the Escrow Agent directly. 

(4) Contractor shall be responsible for paying all fees for the expenses incurred by 
Escrow Agent in administering the Escrow Account and all expenses of the Owner.  These expenses 
and payment terms shall be determined by the Owner, Contractor and Escrow Agent. 

(5) The interest earned on the securities or the money market accounts held in escrow 
and all interest earned on that interest shall be for the sole account of Contractor and shall be subject 
to withdrawal by the Contractor at any time and from time to time without notice to the Owner. 

(6) Contractor shall have the right to withdraw all or any part of the principal in the 
Escrow Account only by written notice to Escrow Agent accompanied by written authorization from 
the Owner to the Escrow Agent that Owner consents to the withdrawal of the amount sought to be 
withdrawn by Contractor. 

(7) The Owner shall have a right to draw upon the securities in the event of default by 
the Contractor.  Upon seven (7) days written notice to the Escrow Agent from the Owner of the 
default, the Escrow Agent shall immediately convert the securities to cash and shall distribute the 
cash as instructed by the Owner. 
 



 

Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE CD 8 

 

(8) Upon receipt of written notification from the Owner certifying that the Contract is 
final and complete, and that the Contractor has complied with all requirements and procedures 
applicable to the Contract, Escrow Agent shall release to Contractor all securities and interest on 
deposit less escrow fees and charges of the Escrow Account.  The escrow shall be closed immediately 
upon disbursement of all moneys and securities on deposit and payments of fees and charges. 

(9) Escrow Agent shall rely on the written notifications from the Owner and the 
Contractor pursuant to Sections (5) to (8), inclusive, of this agreement and the Owner and Contractor 
shall hold Escrow Agent harmless from Escrow Agent's release and disbursement of the securities 
and interest as set forth above. 

(10) The names of the persons who are authorized to give written notice or to receive 
written notice on behalf of the Owner and on behalf of Contractor in connection with the foregoing, 
and exemplars of their respective signatures are as follows: 
 
On behalf of Owner:     On behalf of Contractor: 
 
    
Title Title 
 
    
Name Name 
 
    
Signature Signature 
 
    
Address Address 
 
 
On behalf of Escrow Agent: 
 
  
Title 
 
  
Name 
 
  
Signature 
 
  
Address 
 
 

 



 
 

GCXCDCD C  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 



Joshua Basin Water District 
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE  GC 1 

GCXCDCD C  

 
GENERAL CONDITIONS 

 
Part 1, General Provisions of the Standard Specifications for Public Works Constructions, 2006 
Edition, together with supplements as published by Building News, Inc., 3055 Overland Avenue, 
Los Angeles, CA  90034 and as modified herein are the General Conditions of these specifications. 
 
The modifications set forth below are made to the General Provisions of the Standard 
Specifications.  For convenience, the section and subsection numbering system used in these 
modifications correspond to those used in the Standard Specifications.  Unless specifically deleted 
or modified herein, all requirements of the Standard Specifications shall prevail. 
 
SECTION 1 - TERMS, DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS AND SYMBOLS 
 
Section 1 is amended as follows: 
 
 1-2 DEFINITIONS 
 
 Accepted Bid - The Bid or Proposal accepted by the Joshua Basin Water District (District). 

 Agency, Owner or District - The Joshua Basin Water District, San Bernardino County, 
California. 

 Consultant(s) – The Design Engineer, District Construction Manager and other professionals 
retained by the District 

 Design Engineer – Dudek. 

 Engineer/District Representative –District Construction Manager, acting within the scope 
of the particular duties entrusted to them. 

  Laboratory - The designated Laboratory authorized by the District to test materials and work 
involved in the Contract. 

 Special Provisions - Provisions designated as such which deal with the technical aspects of 
the work rather than with the administrative aspects. 

 
SECTION 2 SCOPE AND CONTROL OF THE WORK 
 
Section 2 is amended as follows: 
 
 2-4 CONTRACT BONDS.  The warranty provisions set forth in Section 7-18 shall be 
secured by the Contract Performance Bond required under this section and said Bond shall 
remain in full force and effect for a period of one year from the date of completion as specified 
in the Notice of Completion. 
 
  2-5.1 General.  Should it appear that the work to be done or any matter thereto is not 
sufficiently detailed or explained by the plans and specification, the Contractor shall apply to the 
Engineer for such further explanation as may be necessary and shall conform to such explanation 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 2 

 

or interpretation as part of the Contract so far as may be consistent with the intent of the original 
plans and specifications. 
 
  2-5.2 Precedence of Contract Documents. 
 
The precedence shall be (A. being highest, K. being lowest): 
 

A.  Permits from other Agencies as may be required by law. 
B.  Change Orders. 
C.  Addenda. 
D.  Agreement. 
E.  Referenced District Standard Specifications and Standard Drawings. 
F.  Technical Specifications. 
G.  Special Conditions. 
H.  Construction Drawings. 
I.  General Conditions. 
J.  Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (SSPWC), 2006 Edition. 
K.  Reference Specifications. 

  
SECTION 3 - CHANGES IN WORK 
 
Section 3 is amended as follows: 
 
 3-3.2.2 Basis for Establishing Costs. 
    

(c) Tool and Equipment Rental.  Regardless of ownership, the rates to be used 
in determining equipment rental costs shall not exceed rates prevailing locally 
at equipment rental agencies, or distributors, at the time the work is 
performed.  If required by the Engineer, the Contractor shall provide 
equipment rental rates from two local rental agencies showing the rental rates 
for the equipment used.  If the rates are different, the lower of the two rates 
will be used to establish cost.  If local equipment rental rates are not available 
for the equipment put on the job, the Engineer, at his discretion, may use (1) 
rental rates for equipment similar in type, rating and capacity to those used on 
the job; (2) rental rates available from other localities; or (3) equipment rental 
rates listed in the Caltrans Labor Surcharge & Equipment Rental Rates 
(LS&ERR), latest edition.  In such case, the LS&ERR shall apply to 
equipment rental rates only and shall not, in any way, apply to the cost of 
labor.  No labor surcharge will be allowed. 

 
 3-3.2.3 Markup. 

(a) Work by Contractor.  The following percentages shall be added to the 
Contractor’s costs and shall constitute the markup for all overhead and profits: 
1) Labor 15 
2) Materials 10 
3) Equipment Rental 10 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 3 

 

4) Other items and expenditures 10 
To the sum of the costs and markups provided for in this subsection, 1 percent 
shall be added as compensation for bonding. 

(b) Work by Subcontractor. When all or any part of the extra work is performed 
by a Subcontractor, the markup established in 3-3.2.3(a) shall be applied to the 
Subcontractor’s actual cost of such work. A markup of 10 percent on the first 
$5,000 of the subcontracted portion of the extra work and a markup of 5 percent 
on work added in excess of $5,000 of the subcontracted portion of the extra 
work may be added by the Contractor. 

 
SECTION 4 - CONTROL OF MATERIALS 
 
Section 4 is amended as follows: 
 
  4-1.1 General  Should any work performed or material furnished under the Contract prove 
defective or not in accordance with the Plans and Specifications and in the opinion of the Engineer 
such defect is not of sufficient magnitude or importance to make the work dangerous or unusable, or 
if the removal of such work is impracticable or will create dangerous or undesirable conditions, the 
Engineer at his discretion shall have the right and authority to retain such work instead of requiring 
it to be removed and reconstructed, but he shall make such deductions therefore in the payment due 
the Contractor as may be just and reasonable. 
 
  4-1.9 Warranty of Title.  No materials, supplies or equipment for the work under this 
Contract shall be purchased subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale contract or 
other agreement by which an interest therein or any part thereof is retained by the seller or supplier. 
The Contractor warrants clear and good title to all materials supplied and equipment installed and 
incorporated in the work and agrees, upon completion of all work, to deliver the premises, together 
with all improvements and appurtenances constructed or placed thereon by him, to the District free 
from any claims, liens, encumbrances or charges, and further agrees that neither he nor any person, 
firm, or corporation furnishing any material or labor for work covered by the Contract shall have 
any right to a lien upon the premises or any improvement or appurtenance thereon, provided that 
this shall not preclude the Contractor from installing metering devices or other equipment of utility 
companies the title of which is commonly retained by the utility company.  Nothing contained in 
this article, however, shall defeat or impair the right of such persons furnishing materials or labor 
under any bond given by the Contractor for their protection, or any right under any law permitting 
such persons to look to funds due the Contractor, which are in the hands of the District. 
 
  4-1.10 Clayton Act.  In submitting a bid to the District, if the bid is accepted the Contractor 
agrees it will assign to the District all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton 
Act (15 U.S.C. Section 15) or under the Cartwright Act (chapter 2 [commencing with Section 
16700] of Part 2 Division 7 of the Business and Professionals Code), arising from purchases of 
goods, materials, or services by the Bidder for sale to the pursuant to the bid.  Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the Bidder. 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 4 

 

SECTION 5 - UTILITIES 
 
No changes. 
 
SECTION 6 - PROSECUTION, PROGRESS AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE WORK 
 
Section 6 is amended as follows: 
 
  6-7.1 General.  The time of completion of the Contract shall be expressed in working       
days. 
 
 6-9 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  The value of liquidated damages noted in this section is 
amended to $500 per day. 
 
 6-11 NOTICE AND SERVICE THEREOF.  Any notice required or given by one party to 
the other under the Contract shall be in writing and shall be dated and signed by the party giving 
such notice or by duly authorized representative of such party.  Any such notice shall not be 
effective for any purpose whatever unless served in the following manner: 
 
 Notice shall be given to the Contractor by personal delivery thereof to said Contractor or to 
his authorized representative at the project site, or by deposing the same in the United States Mail 
enclosed in a sealed envelope addressed to said Contractor at the address established for the conduct 
of work under this Contract, certified and with postage prepaid. 
 
 Notice shall be given to the Surety, or any other person, by personal delivery to said Surety or 
other person, or by depositing the same in the United States Mail, enclosed in a sealed envelope 
addressed to such Surety or persons at the address of said Surety or persons last communicated by 
him to the party giving the notice, certified and with postage prepaid. 
 
 Notice shall be given to the District by personal delivery thereof or by depositing the same in 
the United States Mail enclosed in a sealed envelope, certified and with postage prepaid.  The 
address of record for the District is: 
 
   Joshua Basin Water District  
   61750 Chollita Road 
   P.O. Box 675 
   Joshua Tree, CA 92252  
 
SECTION 7 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONTRACTOR 
 
Section 7 is amended by adding the following: 
 
 7-2.2 Laws.  The Contractor shall comply with Section 1777.5 and 1777.7 of the California 
Labor Code relative to an approved Apprenticeship Training Program. 
 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 5 

 

  The Contractor shall submit certified payrolls to the District on a weekly basis.  Certified 
Payroll and Fringe Benefit Statements shall comply with all provisions as required by State law. 
 
  Failure by the Contractor to comply with the aforementioned requirements shall result in 
withheld progress payments until such time certified payroll documents have been received, 
reviewed, and accepted by the District. The District reserves the right to seek assistance from the 
State Department of Industrial Relations in determining the acceptability of certified payroll 
submittals before release of withheld progress payments. 
 
  The Contractor will observe all applicable health and safety requirements, including, but not 
limited to the California and Federal Occupational Safety and Health Acts.  The Contractor shall 
submit for review by the District a Site Specific Health and Safety Plan prior to the commencement 
of construction activities.   This Plan shall meet or exceed the requirements of 29 CFR 1910.120.  
 
 7-2.3 Prevailing Wage.  Contractors are hereby notified that pursuant to Section 1770 of the 
Labor Code of the State of California, the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin Water District,  
has ascertained the general prevailing rate of hourly wages and rates for legal holidays and overtime 
work in the locality where this work is to be performed, for each craft or type of workman or 
mechanic needed to execute the Contract which will be awarded to the successful Bidder.  The 
Contractor shall comply with all prevailing wage and other Local, State, and Federal labor laws.  
 
 In accordance with Section 1775 of the California Labor code, Contractor shall forfeit to 
District, as a penalty, not more than $50.00 for each day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid, 
either by Contractor, or any subcontractor, less than the prevailing rates as determined by the 
Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations for the work. 
 
 The Contractor or subcontractor shall, as a penalty, to the State or political subdivision on 
whose behalf the contract is made or awarded forfeit twenty-five ($25) dollars for each worker 
employed in the execution of the contract by the respective contractor or subcontractor for each 
calendar day during which the worker is required or permitted to work more than 8 hours in any 
calendar day and 40 hours in any calendar week in violation of Labor Code section 1813. 
 
 7-3 Liability Insurance.  Prior to the commencement of any work on the project, the 
Contractor shall provide to the District certificates evidencing compliance with the insurance 
requirements.  The District and its Consultants shall be named as an additional insured on all 
required insurance policies.  The insurance shall be primary and non-contributing to any insurance 
or self-insurance maintained by the District. Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insured’s 
under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsement from each subcontractor. 
 
 All companies affording coverage shall have a minimum "Best" rating of A.  The coverage 
shall provide the following minimum limits: 
 
A. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance. Contractor shall secure and maintain in force 

throughout the duration of the contract comprehensive general Liability insurance covering 
all work under this Agreement, including work done by subcontractors, with carriers 
acceptable to the District. Minimum coverages of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 6 

 

occurrence and three million dollars ($3,000,000) aggregate for public liability, property 
damage, death and bodily injury is required.  The District and its Consultants shall be named 
as an additional insured and the insurance policy shall include a provision prohibiting 
cancellation of said policy except upon forty-five (45) days prior written notice to the 
District. 

 
B. Business Auto Liability Insurance.   Contractor shall carry business auto liability coverage, 

with minimum limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence, combined single 
limit for bodily injury liability and property damage liability.  This coverage shall include all 
Contractor owned vehicles used on the Agreement, hired and non-owned vehicles, and 
employee non-ownership vehicles. 

 
C. Hold Harmless and Indemnification.  Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend 

District and its elected officials, agents and employees, the Design Engineer and the 
Engineer/District Representative from and against any and all claims, losses or liability, 
including attorney’s fees, arising from injury or death to persons or damage to property 
occasioned by any act, omission or failure to act of Contractor, its subcontractors, and any 
officers, agents and employees in performing the work required by this Agreement.  
Contractor’s obligations under these provisions shall not be limited in any way by any terms 
of this Agreement, or the insurance limits. 

 
D. Subcontractors.  The prime contractor shall include all subcontractors as insured’s under its 

policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements from each subcontractor. 
 
 The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, in whole or in part, without the written 

consent of the District, nor shall the contractor assign any monies due to, or to become due 
to, Contractor hereunder without prior written consent of the District. 

 
 The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the District for the acts and omissions of the 

subcontractor and persons either directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor.  Consent 
to subcontracting part of the work shall, in no way, release the Contractor from responsibility 
for performance of the work, and Contractor will be held, in all respects, accountable for the 
same as if no consent had been given.  The Contractor shall give personal attention to this 
work which is sublet.  Nothing contained in the contract documents shall create any 
contractual relation between any subcontractor and the District. 

 
 7-4  Workers’ Compensation Insurance. 
 
A. Contractor shall have worker’s compensation and employer’s liability insurance in force 

throughout the duration of the contract in an amount which meets the statutory requirement 
with an insurance carrier acceptable to the District. The insurance policy shall include a 
provision prohibiting cancellation of said policy except upon thirty (30) days prior written 
notice to District. Certificates of Insurance shall be delivered to District within ten (10) days 
of execution of the agreement. 

 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 7 

 

B. Contractor expressly waives all rights to subrogation against the District, its officers, 
employees, consultants and volunteers for losses arising from work performed by Contractor 
for District by expressly waiving Contractor’s immunity for injuries to Contractor’s 
employees and agrees that the obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless provided 
for in this Agreement extend to any claim brought by or on behalf of any employee of 
Contractor.  This waiver is mutually negotiated by the parties.  This shall not apply to any 
damage resulting from the sole negligence of District, its agents and employees.  To the 
extent any of the damages referenced herein were caused by or resulted from the concurrent 
negligence of District, its agents or employees, the obligations provided herein to indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless are valid and enforceable only to the extent of the negligence of 
contractor, its officers, agents and employees. 

 
 7-5 PERMITS. 
 
This section is deleted and replaced with the following: 
 
“The Contractor, prior to Notice to Proceed, shall procure all permits and licenses, including but not 
limited to, Current Business License, Street Closure Permit, Water System Permit, USA 
Verification Number, Division of Occupational Safety and Health (DOSH) Excavation Permit, 
County of San Bernardino Encroachment permit, other permits required by agencies having 
jurisdiction on this project, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices necessary and incidentals to 
the due and prosecution of the work.” 
 
 The Contractor shall pay all business taxes or license fees that are required for the work. 
 
 7-6 The Contractor's Representative.  The Contractor shall provide the District with the 
address and business and home telephone numbers of the Contractor's Representative, prior to the 
start of Work. 
 
 7-8.4 Sanitation.  The enclosed toilets required by this section shall be located on the jobsite as 
approved by the Engineer.  Use of these facilities shall be at no cost to the Contractor's employees 
or District's representatives.  The Contractor shall include in its Bid all costs for these facilities.  
 
 7-8.5 Temporary Lights, Power and Water.  Any water drawn from a District fire hydrant 
shall be via a District owned water meter.  Said meter may be obtained from the District. Said meter 
shall be returned in a condition like received, less normal wear and tear.  All meters are loaned 
subject to the conditions of the Construction Meter Agreement.  Water reasonably used in 
connection with the construction contract will be provided at NO COST to the Contractor.  Water 
use determined to be wasteful or unreasonable will be charged for at the prevailing rate. 
 

7-10.1 Street Closure, Detours, Barricades.  The contractor shall not close any street 
without first obtaining the approval of the Joshua Basin Water District and other governing 
agencies as may be applicable.  Barricading, traffic control and detour diagrams shall be 
submitted by the Contractor as required by the governing agency and/or encroachment permit. 

 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 8 

 

The Contractor may be allowed to close the roadway, or a portion thereof, to traffic during 
normal work hours upon approval from the Engineer.  During any closure, the Contractor shall 
allow access for residents, schools, mail delivery, trash service trucks, churches and businesses 
within the affected portion of roadway, except as required for construction for a reasonable 
period of time. A minimum of 24-hours before any such closure, the Contractor shall hand 
deliver a District-approved flyer or notification to each residence and shall place said flyer on the 
door handle or door step.  The Contractor shall secure each flyer in such a manner to prevent it 
from blowing away and shall not cause damage to the private property.  In the event that the 
closed roadway is not accessible for trash service trucks on a trash pick-up day, the Contractor 
shall arrange all impacted trash containers to a location that is accessible to the trucks and bring 
them back to each respective resident in such a manner to prevent them from mix-matching. 
 
 The Contractor shall provide and install barricades, delineators, warning devices and 
construction signs in accordance with the Model Work Area Traffic Control Handbook 
(WATCH) prepared by the Southern California Chapter of the American Public Works 
Association.  During adverse weather or unusual traffic or working conditions additional devices 
shall be placed as directed by the engineer.  All traffic signs and devices shall conform to the 
current State of California, Department of Transportation (CALTRANS), "Manual of Warning 
Signs, Lights, and Devices for Use in Performance of Work upon Highways", unless otherwise 
approved by the Engineer. 
 
 The Contractor shall provide and maintain Class II barricades along excavation edges 
parallel to the flow of traffic at a spacing of twenty-five feet (25').  Class II barricades mounted 
with flashers shall be installed around work areas in parkways.  Class II barricades shall have 
alternating black and reflector zed white (or yellow) stripes at an angle of 45 degrees.  The stripe 
width shall be four to six inches. 
 
 During paving operations barricades may be supplemented with minimum size eighteen-
inch (18") high traffic cones and delineators such that spacing between barricades and/or cones 
or delineators is no greater than twenty-five feet (25").  At all access points such as intersecting 
streets, alleys and driveways, barricades and/or cones shall be provided at five-foot (5') intervals 
so as to prevent vehicular access to the paving area.  Where access from an intersecting street is 
prohibited, a "Road Closed" sign shall be provided.  "No Left Turn" sign shall be provided 
wherever required by the Engineer. 
 
 When access from a side street or alleyway is permitted, barricades and cones shall be 
provided at five-foot (5') intervals for a distance of fifty feet (50') on either side of the centerline 
of the intersecting street or alley. 
 
 Should the Contractor fail to furnish a sufficient number of traffic and/or pedestrian 
safety devices within three (3) hours after being notified, the District will place such necessary 
items and the Contractor shall be liable to the District for providing such devices in accordance 
with the following provisions: 
 
1. For placing of barricades - $7.50 per barricade for each day or part thereof. 
 

For flashers - $7.50 per flasher for each day or part thereof. 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 9 

 

 
For traffic cones - $2.50 per cone for each day or part thereof. 

 
2. In the event that the services of the District are required outside the normal working 

hours and/or days, the charges as set forth in Section 5 in the Special Conditions shall 
be levied against the Contractor.  

 
 The Contractor shall relocate, preserve and maintain the visibility of all signs within the 
project limits which affect the flow of traffic, as directed by the engineer.  Any signs that are 
missing or found damaged shall be replaced immediately by the Contractor at his expense. 
 
 7-10.4.4 Confined Spaces.  The Contractor hereby promises and agrees that in the performance 
of the Work, he will employ and utilize only qualified persons, as hereinafter defined, to work in 
any confined space.  The term "qualified person" is defined in Title 8, California Administrative 
Code, Section 2700, as follows: 
 
 "Qualified Person".  A person by reason of experience or instruction is familiar with the 
operation to be performed and hazards involved. 
 
 Contractor further promises and agrees that the provisions of this paragraph shall be and are 
binding upon any Subcontractor or Subcontractors that may be retained by it, and that the 
Contractor shall take such steps as are necessary to insure compliance by said Subcontractor or 
Subcontractors with the requirements of this paragraph. 
 
 7-15 RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE.  The Contractor agrees to and does hereby 
indemnify, defend  and  hold  harmless  the  District,  its  elected  officials  and Consultants and their 
officers, agents and employees from every claim or demand made, and every liability, loss, damage, 
or expense of any nature whatsoever, including attorney's fees and costs, which may be incurred by 
reason of: 
 

(a) Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to persons, (2) injury to loss or theft of 
property, (3) any other loss, damage or expense arising under either (1) or (2) above, 
sustained by the Contractor or any person, firm or corporation employed by the contractor 
upon or in connection with the work called for in this agreement, except for the liability 
resulting from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the District, its elected officials 
and their officers, employees and agents who are directly employed by the District and its 
Consultants; and 
 

(b) any injury to or death of persons or damage to property caused by any fault, neglect, default 
or omission of the Contractor, or any person, firm or corporation employed by the 
Contractor, either directly or by independent contract, including all damages due to loss or 
theft, sustained by any person, firm or corporation, including the District , arising out of, or 
in any way connected with the work covered by this agreement, whether said injury or 
damage occurs either on or off District property, provided that any of the foregoing (1) is 
attributable to personal injury, bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or 
destruction of tangible property (other than the work itself), including the loss of use 
resulting there from, and (2) is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 10 

 

Contractor, any subcontractor, any supplier, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any 
of them or anyone for whose act or omissions any of them may be liable, regardless of 
whether or not caused in part by any act or omission (active, passive, or comparative 
negligence included, excepting the active negligence of the District) of a party indemnified 
hereunder. 

 
(c) The Contractor, at its own expense, cost, and risk shall defend any and all actions, suits or 

other proceedings that may be brought or instituted against the District, its elected officials, 
officers, agents and employees and Consultants, against any such claim, demand or liability, 
and shall pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against the District, its elected 
officials, officers, agents or employees, in any such action, suit or other proceedings as a 
result thereof. 

 
 7-16 NO PERSONAL LIABILITY.  Neither the District Board of Directors, the District 
Consultants, nor any other officer, employee or authorized assistant or agent shall be personally 
responsible for any liability arising under the contract. 
 
 7-17 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK.  Except as provided above, until 
the formal acceptance of the Work by the District, the Contractor shall have the charge and care 
thereof and shall bear the risk of injury or damage to any part thereof by the action of the elements 
or from any other cause, whether arising from the execution or from the non-execution of the Work. 
The Contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore, and make good all injuries or damages to any portion of 
the work occasioned by any of the above causes before final acceptance and shall bear the expense 
thereof, except such injuries or damages occasioned by act of the federal government or the public 
enemy. 
 
 The District shall not be held responsible for the care or protection of any material or parts of 
the Work prior to final acceptance, except as expressly provided in these specifications. 
 
 The District shall not be responsible for security of the Contractors equipment or materials at the 
site.  The District will not be responsible for theft or damage to any property or materials of the 
Contractor.  Security for Contractor’s property shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. 
 
 7-18 WARRANTY OF WORK.  The Contractor shall guarantee the Work against 
defective materials or workmanship for a period of one (1) year from the date of completion 
date specified in the Notice of Completion, except where longer warranty periods are 
specifically stated.  The Contractor shall agree to make, at his own expense, any repairs or 
replacements made necessary by defects in materials and workmanship which become evident 
within said guarantee period.  The Contractor shall further agree to indemnify and hold harmless the 
District, its Consultants and their officers, agents, and employees against and from all claims and 
liability arising from damage and injury due to said defects.  The Contractor shall make all repairs 
and replacements promptly upon receipt of written order from the District. If the Contractor fails to 
make the repairs and replacements promptly, the District may do the work and the Contractor and 
his surety shall be liable to the District for the cost of such work. 
 
The Guarantee and conditions specified in the paragraph above shall be secured by a surety bond 
which shall be delivered by the Contractor to the District prior to the date on which final 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 11 

 

payment is made to the Contractor.  Said bond shall be in an approved form and executed by a 
surety company or companies satisfactory to the District, in the amount of 10 percent of the 
Contract price, or $5,000, whichever is greater.  Said bond shall remain in force for the duration 
of the guarantee period specified in Subsection (a).  Instead of providing such a bond as 
described, the Contractor may, at his option, provide for the faithful performance bond furnished 
under the Contract to remain in force for said amount until the expiration of said guarantee 
period. 
  
All work which has been rejected, shall be remedied, or removed and replaced, by the Contractor at 
his own expense, with work conforming to the Plans and Specifications.  Any defective material or 
workmanship which may be discovered before final acceptance or within one (1) year from the 
completion date specified in the Notice of Completion shall be corrected immediately by the 
Contractor at his own expense notwithstanding that it may have been overlooked in previous 
inspections and estimates.  Failure to inspect work at any stage shall not relieve the Contractor from 
any obligation to perform sound and reliable work as herein described.  It is the Contractor's 
ultimate responsibility to deliver at the time of final acceptance a complete project that complies in 
all details with these Contract Documents.  All items shall be ready to operate. 
 
 Any omission or failure on the part of the District to discover or notify the Contractor of or to 
condemn defective work or material at the time of construction shall not be deemed an acceptance, 
and the Contractor will be required to correct defective work or material prior to final acceptance. 
 
 The District will endeavor to locate any errors or defective materials or workmanship and call 
them to the attention of the Contractor prior to subsequent work being performed.  However, the 
District is under no obligation to do so and shall not be held liable because errors or defective 
material or workmanship by the Contractor are not discovered prior to subsequent work. 
  
During the one (1) year warranty period, should the Contractor fail to remedy defective material 
and/or workmanship, or to make replacements within five (5) days after written notice by the 
District, it is agreed that the District may make such repairs and replacement and the actual cost of 
the required labor and materials shall be chargeable to and payable by the Contractor or his Surety. 
 
 Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit the rights of the District to immediately 
correct conditions which may be unsafe or which may pose a public health nuisance.  Should said 
conditions later be found to be caused by defective material and/or workmanship, the Contractor 
and his Surety shall reimburse the District for costs reasonably incurred while attending the 
situation. 
 
 In the event it is necessary for the District to file suit to enforce any liability of the Contractor 
pursuant to this sections WARRANTY OF WORK, the District shall be entitled to recover from the 
Contractor, in addition to all other amounts found due and owing, costs of suit and reasonable 
expenses and fees, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by the District in successfully 
enforcing the Contractor's obligations, all to be taxed as costs and included in any judgment 
rendered. 
 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 12 

 

 The warranty provided herein shall not be in lieu of, but shall be in addition to any warranties or 
other obligations otherwise imposed by the Contract Document or by law.  The remedies provided 
herein shall not be exclusive and the District shall be entitled to any and all remedies provided by 
law. 
 
17BSECTION 8 - FACILITIES FOR AGENCY PERSONNEL 
 
This section is deleted in its entirety. 
 
18BSECTION 9 - MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
Section 9 is amended as follows: 
 
 9-3.2 Progress and Final Payment.  The closure date for the purpose of making monthly 
progress payments shall be the last working day of the month unless otherwise assigned by the 
Engineer during the pre-construction meeting.  Payment, less deductions, unearned work and 
retention, will be made within 30 days of the closure date.  If a dispute exists between the District 
and the Contractor regarding an item included in the Contractor's Monthly Progress Payment 
Request, progress payments will be withheld until said dispute is resolved, in which case longer 
period of time will be required to make such payment.  No such payment shall be required to be 
made, when in the judgment of the District, the total value of the work since the last estimate 
amounts to less than $500.  If, in the opinion of the District, work is not progressing according to the 
approved schedule, payments may be withheld until the Contractor returns to the approved 
schedule. 
 
 The originals of certified payrolls are to be submitted to the District along with each payment 
request within 10-calendar days of the closing of each pay period for the contractor.  No progress 
payment will be made to the contractor, unless the certified payrolls are submitted to the District for 
that particular pay period for which the progress payment is requested.  The certified payroll shall 
include all personnel who worked on the project during that particular pay period. 
 
 Deductions will be made for: (1) amounts due the District for equipment or material furnished 
or services rendered;  (2) amounts due the District under the terms of the Contract; (3) amounts of 
any claims of lien filed with the District;  (4) accrued amounts of liquidated damages;  (5) amounts 
required to be deducted by Federal, State or local governmental authorities.  From the balance thus 
determined will be deducted the amounts of all previous payments, and the remainder shall 
constitute the monthly payment due the Contractor. 
 
 A retention of ten percent (10%) will be withheld from each and every progress payment to the 
Contractor.  This percentage will remain constant throughout the duration of the Contract.  The 
District shall make a progress payment within thirty (30) days after receipt of an undisputed and 
properly submitted payment request from Contractor pursuant to Public Contract Code section 
20104.50. 
 
 After completion of the work to the satisfaction of the District, the District shall make a final 
estimate of the amount of work done.  The District shall pay the entire sum so found to be due after 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 13 

 

deducting there from all previous payments and all amounts to be retained under the provisions of 
the Contract.  All prior partial estimates and payments shall be subject to correction in the final 
estimate and payment.  The final payment shall not be due and payable until the expiration of sixty 
(60) days from and after the recordation of the Notice of Completion filed by the District. 
 
 After issuance of the District's final written acceptance, the Contractor may make application for 
final payment following the procedure for progress payments.  Neither the final payment nor the 
remaining retained percentage shall become due unless the application for final payment is 
accompanied by such supporting data as the District may require, together with complete and 
legally effective releases or waivers, satisfactory to the District, of all liens arising out of the 
Contract Documents and the labor and services performed and the material and equipment furnished 
thereunder.  In lieu thereof and as approved by the District, the Contractor may furnish receipts or 
releases in full; an affidavit of the Contractor that the releases and receipts include all labor, 
services, material and equipment for which a lien could be filed, and that all payrolls, material and 
equipment bills, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which the District or his 
property might in any way be responsible, have been paid or otherwise satisfied; and consent of 
Surety, if any, to final payment.  If any Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, or supplier fails or refuses 
to furnish a release or receipt in full, the Contractor may furnish a Bond satisfactory to the District 
to indemnify him against any such lien.  If any such lien remains unsatisfied after all payments are 
made, the Contractor or his surety shall pay to the District all moneys the District may be compelled 
to pay in discharging such lien, including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees. 

 
(a) The Contractor must obtain an unconditional waiver and release of claims upon final 

payment from all suppliers and subcontractors which have filed preliminary notices with 
the District. 

 
(b) The Contractor must obtain in writing releases from each owner of real property from 

which the Contractor has obtained permission to use land.  Such release shall state that 
the land is returned to the property owner in an acceptable condition.  Similar releases 
must be obtained from owners of property disturbed by the Contractor from which the 
Contractor has not obtained permission to use or enter; except that releases are limited to 
restoration of land to original lines and grades. restoration of vegetation and removal of 
waste material. 

 
 The application will be returned if the above items are not submitted with the final 
application for payment.  The Contractor may make application for final payment upon obtaining 
unconditional releases of claims from each sub-contractor or supplier for each preliminary notice 
submitted to the District.  After the work is complete and the District receives unconditional 
releases from all subcontractors and suppliers, the District will file a Notice of Completion with 
the County Recorder.  After thirty-five (35) days have elapsed following recording of such 
notice, final payment will be made to the Contractor. 
 
 As provided by paragraph 22300 of the California Public Contract Code, the Contractor may 
substitute securities for any monies withheld by the District to ensure performance under the 
Contract.  Substitute securities shall be deposited in a financial institution in a form acceptable to the 
District.  The Escrow Agreement to be used is set forth in the Special Conditions of the Contract 
Documents (SC 7). 
 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 14 

 

 9-3.3 Delivered Materials.  Payment will be made for project materials delivered and stored 
onsite based upon presentation by the Contractor of a Bill of Sale, an Invoice or an Affidavit 
certifying that the material is received by the Contractor free and clear of all liens, encumbrances 
and secured interests of any kind, and including, evidence acceptable to the District that "all-risks" 
property insurance in an amount sufficient to protect the interests of the District is in effect at the 
approved site, and that the District is a loss payee and an additional insured 
 
 9-3.4 Extras.  Without invalidating the Contract, the District may order extra work or make 
changes by altering, adding or deducting from the work, the Contract sum being adjusted 
accordingly and the consent of the Surety being first obtained where necessary or desirable.  All the 
Extra Work shall be paid for at the price stipulated on the proposal, and no claims for any extra 
work or material shall be allowed unless the work is ordered in writing by the District and the price 
is stated in such order. 
 
 9-3.5 Claims for Extra Costs.  No claim for extra work or cost shall be allowed unless the 
same was done in pursuance of a written order by the District, as aforesaid, and the claim presented 
with the first estimate after the changed or extra work is done.  When work is performed under the 
terms of the General Conditions, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory bills, payrolls, and 
vouchers covering all items of cost and when requested by the District, give the District access to 
accounts relating thereto. 
 
SECTION 10 - ASSIGNMENT OF UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES CLAIMS.   
 
 10-1.  In entering into a public works contract or a subcontract to supply goods, services, or 
materials pursuant to a public works contract, the Contractor or subcontractor offers and agrees to 
assign to the District all rights, title and interest and to all causes of action it may have under Section 
4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2, commencing with 
section  16700  of  part  2  of  division  7  of  the  Business  and  Professions Code),  arising from the 
purchase of goods, services, or materials pursuant to this public works agreement.  This assignment 
shall be made and become effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the Contractor, 
without further acknowledgment by the Parties. 
 
SECTION 11 – HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. 
 
 11-1.  the Contractor shall promptly and before the following conditions are disturbed, 
notify the District in writing, of any: 
 

 (1) Material that the Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste, as 
defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code that is required to be removed 
to a Class I, Class II or Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing 
law. 

 
 (2) Subsurface or latent physical conditions differing from those indicated. 

 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   GC 15 

 

 (3) Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature, different materially 
from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the 
character provided for in the contract. 

 
 B. That the District shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that the 

conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause a decrease 
or increase in the Contractor’s cost of, or the time required for, performance of any part 
of work shall issue a change order under the procedures described in the contract. 

 
 C. That, in the event that a dispute arises between the District and the Contractor whether 

the conditions materially differ, or involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or 
increase in the Contractor cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the 
work, the Contractor shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided 
for by the contract, but shall proceed with all work to be performed under the contract.  
The Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either by contract or by law 
which pertains to the resolution of disputes and protests between the contracting parties. 

 



GCXCDCD C  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   SC 1 
 
 

 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
SECTION 1.0 - SCOPE OF WORK 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: Installation of a 6’-0” chain link security fence, including 3 
strand barb wire and integral tortoise exclusion fence at the Joshua Basin Water District’s 
future groundwater recharge facility site. Constructed project includes all utility location 
and verification (verifying location and depth of utility facilities within project limits); all 
site work including: protecting in place all existing utilities, trees, and public and private 
improvements; excavation for and construction of concrete footings; installation of fence 
and appurtenances; and restoring all areas and improvements to pre-construction 
conditions. 

SECTION 2.0 - WORK SITE 

District owned future recharge facility site located at the easterly end of Verbena Road, between 
Sunburst Street and Border Avenue, in Joshua Tree, CA. 

SECTION 3.0 - CONTRACT DRAWINGS 

A. The following contract drawings are made a part of these Contract Documents: 

Construction Drawings (11” x 17”) 

 Title Sheet No. 

Fence Installation Plan 1 
Details 2 

SECTION 4.0 - TIME OF COMPLETION 

 Attention is directed to section 6-7.1 of the General Conditions.  The time of completion 
for all work under this Contract shall be fifteen (15) working days from the date in the Notice to 
Proceed. 

SECTION 5.0 - WORKING DAYS AND WORKING HOURS 
  

Working days are as defined as: Any Calendar day, exclusive of Saturdays and District 
holidays on which the contractor could proceed with construction operations for a period of six 
(6) hours or more with the normal working forces engaged in performing work on the controlling 
item or items of work, which normally would be in progress at that time, will be classified as a 
working day.  

 Working hours shall be limited to between 7:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M. during working days 
only.  Deviation from normal working days or working hours will not be allowed without the 
prior written consent of the District. 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   SC 2 
 
 

 

 If the Contractor is forced to work outside the normal working hours due to his negligence, 
or as directed by the District as a matter of public safety or to insure the quality of the work, a 
project administration fee will be levied against the Contractor at the rate of $60 per hour, for a 
minimum of 4.0 hours, including travel time where applicable, except when the work is an 
uninterrupted continuation of a regular working day, in which case a minimum of 1.0 hour 
charge will be imposed. 

 Nothing in this section shall be construed as an authorization to the Contractor to perform 
any work outside the normal working days or working hours, and/or perform such work without 
the presence of an authorized District representative. 
 
 
SECTION 6.0 - CONSTRUCTION STAKING 
 

Contractor shall include in his bid and provide all construction staking required.  
Contractor shall use the construction stakes for location of grading and other improvements.  The 
District will use them for inspection of the work.  Contractor shall protect all survey monuments 
and stakes and shall pay all costs to reestablish any monuments or stakes destroyed or disturbed 
during the course of construction. 

SECTION 7.0 - SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS  

 The District will furnish to the Contractor (3) three sets of specifications and drawings.  
Additional quantities of specifications and drawings will be furnished at reproduction cost. 
 
 All Work conducted under this Contract shall be constructed in strict accordance with the 
Joshua Basin Water District standard plans and specifications.   
 
 In the event of a conflict between these specifications and the District’s standard plans and 
specifications, the District standards shall be followed.  Conflict between the standards and these 
specifications shall be identified by the Contractor to the District prior to conduct of the Work, 
and the Work shall not proceed without written clarification of the Work by the District.  
Conduct of the Work by the Contractor without written clarification shall be at the risk of the 
Contractor, and no additional compensation will be allowed, in any form, for correction of 
conflicted Work performed by the Contractor without the written clarification of the District. 

SECTION 8.0 - UTILITIES 
  
 The Contractor shall provide all water, power and other utilities required to perform the 
work as set in Section 7-8.5 in the General Conditions.  A water supply will be available from a 
fire riser located on the reservoir site. 

SECTION 9.0 - SCHEDULING AND ORDER OF WORK 
 At the pre-construction meeting, the Contractor shall submit a detailed construction 
schedule indicating from the beginning of the job to the final cleanup, the various phases of the 
job and the dates during which period this portion of the work shall be done.  The schedule shall 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   SC 3 
 
 

 

be approved by the District and shall be adhered to during construction.  It shall include the time 
schedule indicating the beginning date and the completion date for various phases of work.  Acts 
of nature shall be the only cause for varying from this schedule.  Weekly updates shall be 
prepared and submitted.   

SECTION 10.0 – PRECONSTRUCTION, PROGRESS MEETINGS & DAILY REPORTS 
 
The Contractor to whom the contract is awarded, and all his major subcontractors, shall 

attend a pre-construction meeting.  The time and location of said meeting will be set by the 
District.  Contractor will be given adequate notice of such meeting.  It shall be the Contractor's 
responsibility to notify his subcontractors of the time and location of the meeting.  All submittals 
as required under the Technical Specification Section 01300 shall be submitted by the Contractor 
at the time of the meeting. 
 

Progress meetings will be scheduled by the District.  The Contractor will be given at least 
five working days notice of the time and location of said meetings.  The Contractor has the 
responsibility of notifying his subcontractors, suppliers, and fabricators of the time and location 
of said meetings.  Meetings will be held either at the job site, at the offices of the District, or at 
any other location approved by the District.  The Contractor may request, in writing, that a 
meeting be held.   The District will schedule a meeting at the Contractor’s request not more than 
five working days after receiving said written notice. 

 
Contractor shall provide the District Representative with daily reports covering all work-

days from the previous week, by noon on Mondays that are working days. Daily reports shall 
contain at a minimum, the following: 

• Date, contract, calendar day number, working day number 
• Temperature and weather at jobsite including wind 
• Names of all employees on jobsite 
• List of all equipment, subcontractors and visitors on jobsite  
• Work completed. 
• List any work approved by the District as “Extra Work” 

Daily Reports will be the basis for preparing monthly pay requests. Failure to submit daily 
reports may result in reduced pay requests. 
 
SECTION 11.0 - SAFETY 
 

In compliance with generally accepted construction practices, the Contractor shall be 
solely and completely responsible for conditions of the job site, including safety of all persons 
and property during performance of the work, and the Contractor shall fully comply with all 
state, federal, and other laws, rules, regulations, and orders relating to safety of the public and 
workers.  This requirement shall apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours. 

 
The right of the District or the District’s Representative to conduct construction review or 

observation of the Contractor’s performance will not include review or observation of the adequacy 
of the Contractor’s safety measures in, on, or near the construction site. 

 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   SC 4 
 
 

 

 

SECTION 12.0   EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND SITE OF WORK 

 The Bidder shall examine carefully the site(s) of work contemplated.  The submission of a 
bid shall be conclusive evidence that the Bidder has investigated and is satisfied as to the 
conditions to be encountered as to character, quality and scope of work to be performed; the 
quantities of material s to be furnished; and as to the requirements of the bid Proposal, plans and 
specification. 
 
SECTION 13.0 - PERMITS, CERTIFICATES, LAWS, AND ORDINANCES 
 
 Contractor shall, at his own expense, procure all other permits, certificates, and licenses 
required of him by law and by Section 7-5 of the General Conditions for execution of the work.  
Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances, or rules and 
regulations relating to the performance of the work. 

SECTION 14.0 – COMPLIANCE WITH CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

Contractor shall comply with all instructions of District to ensure compliance with the 
Contract Documents, including timely completion of work each day; backfilling trenches each 
day and dust control.  If Contractor does not comply with the Contract Documents, then District 
may provide the required labor, materials, and equipment to perform the same and shall deduct 
the cost from monies otherwise due under the Contract. 
 
 
SECTION 15.0 – PRESERVATION OF PAVED SURFACES, ENVIRONMENTAL 
FACTORS, RESTORATION OF WORK SITES, AND DISPOSAL OF SPOIL AND 
WASTE MATERIALS 
 

(a) Access to the work site is by paved and un-paved public roads.  Contractor shall 
utilize said roads in such a manner as to not damage the existing roads or the adjacent property.  
Any damage to said roads shall be repaired by Contractor to the satisfaction of the agency having 
jurisdiction over roadway. 
 

(b) Work shall be performed to prevent fires, air pollution, and in compliance with 
applicable noise ordinances.  Said prevention shall apply to travel on access roads as well as on 
the work site.  In addition, all equipment shall be provided with spark arrestors and noise 
suppressors as required. 

 
Contractor shall not perform work outside the work site limits (as shown by existing road 

right-of-way on the construction drawings) and shall not leave said work site except when 
entering or leaving the area via the public roads.  All areas adjacent to or in the vicinity of the 
work site shall be restored to pre-job conditions and shall meet all requirements of District.  
Contractor is obligated to keep visual impacts for the work sites to a minimum; therefore, 
Contractor is required to restore all areas altered by construction to near pre-construction 



 

Joshua Basin Water District  
RECHARGE BASIN SECURITY AND TORTOISE FENCE   SC 5 
 
 

 

conditions.  Such areas shall include, but shall not be limited to, areas used for travel, parking, 
and storage of vehicles, equipment, and materials. 

 
(d) Contractor shall be responsible for the proper disposal of all waste materials resulting 

from his operations, including rubbish and packaging material, in a manner and location suitable 
to the District.  Contractor shall clean work site and remove all trash and rubbish from premises a 
minimum on one time per week.  Material and equipment including mounds of earth and other 
debris, shall be stored on the job site only as needed and removed from the site daily, or as soon 
as they are no longer necessary, as determined by the District. All cleanup cost shall be included 
in the Contractor’s bid. 

 
(e) Contractor shall also take all necessary precautions to control dust created by 

construction operations.  Contractor shall be especially diligent in implementing his dust control 
program and he shall be prepared to respond immediately and positively to any instructions for 
corrective action give by District.  Contractor shall use dust palliatives if necessary to 
satisfactorily control dust; however, Contractor shall secure District approval for use of dust 
palliatives other that water. 

 
(f)  In the event asbestos cement pipe is encountered in the work, the Contractor shall 

submit a plan for the removal and disposal of asbestos cement pipe.  Contractor shall provide the 
District with all necessary documentation, receipts, manifests, etc. regarding the removal and 
disposal of asbestos cement pipe as part of any request for payment that includes such work. 
Information regarding quantity, disposal location, transportation and handling method shall be 
provided. 

SECTION 16.0 – SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 
 
 The Contractor shall make such subsurface investigations he/she may require to establish 
the true nature of the subsurface conditions affecting the Work, the difficulties which may be 
encountered (including subsurface rock or other obstacles), and the de-watering or other 
operations which may be required to complete the Work.  No additions or extra payment will be 
made to the Contractor on account of any subsurface conditions whether or not known or latent, 
including rock.  This paragraph shall be construed in accordance with Public Contract Code 
Section 7104 and Government Code Section 4215, to the extent such provisions may apply.



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SHEET 

 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors       June 6, 2012 
 
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
From:  Joe Guzzetta, General Manager  
 
TOPIC: RECOMMENDATION OF CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

FOR THE 2013 AND 2014 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 
 

RECOMMENDATION: The Citizens Advisory Committee recommends adoption of the 
2013 and 2014 Fiscal Years Budget with modifications as noted 
below 
 

ANALYSIS: On May 22 the Board and the Citizens Advisory Committee 
held a joint meeting to receive the 2013 and 2014 proposed 
Fiscal Years budget after which the Board referred the budget 
to the CAC for recommendation. 
 
After considerable review and the discussion the CAC 
recommended adoption of the budget with the following 
comments: 

• The entry for “Standby Income Prior” should be deleted 
from the budget since it is just an accounting entry and 
to balance to cash statements. 

• The employee and volunteer appreciation event should 
be budgeted for both years rather than just one year. 

• The CAC supports the signage improvements proposed 
for the Demonstration Garden and would support 
installing a canvass-type canopy since the District is not 
able to afford the more expensive shade structure 
originally designed by the landscape architect. 

• The CAC supports the reduction of staff proposed to 
streamline operations. 

• The CAC supports the reduced cost of the secondary 
water source for the Hi Desert Medical Center complex 
and the proposed funding for attendance of legal 
counsel at the Board meetings. 

 
The Chairman of the CAC will be present to discuss these and 
any other comments from the CAC for the proposed budget.  
  

 



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SHEET 

 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors       June 6, 2012 
 
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
From:  Ad Hoc Budget Committee:  President Mike Reynolds and Director Frank Coate
  
 

TOPIC: RECOMMENDATION OF THE BOARD AD HOC BUDGET COMMITTEE 
FOR THE 2013 AND 2014 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 
 

RECOMMENDATION: The Board Ad Hoc Budget Committee recommends adoption of the 
2013 and 2014 Fiscal Years Budget with modifications noted below. 
 

ANALYSIS: On May 22 the Board and the Citizens Advisory Committee held a 
joint meeting to receive the 2013 and 2014 proposed Fiscal Years 
budget after which the Board referred the budget to the Board Ad 
Hoc Budget Committee and to the CAC for recommendation. 
 
The Board Ad Hoc Budget Committee attended the meeting of the 
CAC to observe and hear recommendations of the CAC.  When the 
CAC finished its deliberations and voting, the Board Ad Hoc 
Committee held its own deliberation.  The Ad Hoc Committee 
recommends adoption of the budget with the following comments: 

• The $10,000 of funds budgeted for “Interpretive Signage” at 
the Demonstration Garden should be expanded more 
generally for “Demonstration Garden Improvements” so that 
some of the funding could be used for other improvements 
such as the canvass-type canopy.  The Ad Hoc Committee 
supports funding interpretative signage at the Gardens but 
recommends asking the Board Public Information Committee 
to explore alternative signage which might be less expensive, 
while durable, in order to fund some other improvements. 

• The entry for “Standby Income Prior” should be deleted from 
the budget since it is just an accounting entry and to balance 
to cash statements. 

• The employee and volunteer appreciation event should be 
budgeted for both years rather than just one year. 

• The Ad Hoc Committee supports the reduction of staff 
proposed to streamline operations. 

• The Ad Hoc Committee supports the reduced cost of the 
secondary water source for the Hi Desert Medical Center 
complex and the proposed funding for attendance of legal 
counsel at the Board meetings as noted by the CAC. 

 


















































	Attach but update Recharge Fencing 2012May22 Front End Spec.pdf
	16BCONTRACT DOCUMENTS
	NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS)
	0BBID DOCUMENTS

	BID PROPOSAL FORM
	BID CERTIFICATION
	2B STATEMENT BY BIDDER
	3B NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT
	4BSTATEMENT BY BIDDER
	5B OFFICERS OF CORPORATION (Members of Firm)
	4BSTATEMENT BY BIDDER
	7BSUB-CONTRACTORS LIST
	8BSTATEMENT BY BIDDER
	9BQUALIFICATION AND EXPERIENCE STATEMENT
	10BSTATEMENT BY BIDDER
	11BGENERAL INFORMATION
	17BSECTION 8 - FACILITIES FOR AGENCY PERSONNEL
	18BSECTION 9 - MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT



	SR CAC Budget recommendation 6 6 12.pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT

	SR Ad Hoc Budget Committee Recommendations 6 6 12.pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT




